
A G E N D A  

WORK SESSION 

City of Moberly 

December 16, 2019 

6:00 PM 
  

 

Requests, Ordinances, and Miscellaneous 

1. Review of an agreement between J & M Display and the City of Moberly for the 2020 4th of July 

event. 

2. An Ordinance Approving A Development Agreement; Making Certain Findings And Ratifying 

Prior Acts; And Providing Further Authority. 

3. Appointment to the Downtown CID Board 

4. Discussion for proposed stormwater solution for the Harrison/Garfield project as well as the Fox Run area. 

5. Discussion Regarding Retaining KIMHEC for Services Related to Pretreatment Program Assistance  

6. Review of an agreement with Howe Company LLC for professional services at Moberly Industrial 

Park Subdivision. 

  

1



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Parks and Rec. 

Date: December 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: Review of an agreement between J & M Display and the City of Moberly for 

the 2020 4th of July event. 

  

Summary:  The City has had a positive ongoing relationship with J&M Displays for 

many years. J&M is a very professional and safe company which is 

responsible for most of the larger shows in Missouri. Given the size and scale 

of the show, the professionalism and technical experience required, the 

potential safety risks given the mass crowd and adjacent forests, and the fact 

that J&M Displays provides bonus product given the size of the show and 

early order, staff recommends continuing with J&M Displays in 2020. We are 

also receiving a credit for a series that did not go off last year due to the rain 

the morning of the event. 

 

The contract is attached for a $20,000 show after discounts and bonus product 

($25,283.50 value). Please see the attached agreement and proposal. 

 

Also note the $10,000,000 insurance carried by J&M Displays. The City of 

Moberly will, as in past years, be listed as an additional insured.  

 

$15,000 was budgeted in the current year budget under the MPRD Recreation 

fund (Remaining balance $17,100). The remaining $5,000 was budgeted for in 

the General Fund (100.013.5406. Remaining balance $104,331.60). 

 

  

Recommended 

Action: Direct staff to bring to the January 6th  2020 Council meeting  

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
    x  Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other        Passed Failed 

 2

 WS #1.



J & M Displays, Inc. 1  

FIREWORKS DISPLAY AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this               day of                                                , 20          , by 
and between J & M Displays, Inc., an Iowa corporation, having its principal place of business at Yarmouth, Iowa, 
hereinafter referred to as “Seller”, and                                                                                         , hereinafter referred to as 
“Buyer”. 

 
Seller shall furnish to Buyer one (1) fireworks display, as per the $                                  program submitted and 

accepted by the Buyer, and which by reference is made a part hereof as Exhibit "A".  The display is to take place on the 
evening of                                                , 20           at approximately           :          pm, weather permitting. 

 
IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1.   Firing of Display (check one of the below options): 

 
              Seller  agrees  to  furnish  all  necessary  fireworks  display  material  and  personnel  for  a  fireworks  display  in 
accordance with the program approved by the parties.  Seller agrees to comply with all local, state, and federal guidelines 
pertaining to the storing and displaying of fireworks. 

 
            Buyer waives the services of Seller’s technician.  Buyer is a municipality or has a valid permit from the Bureau of 
Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms & Explosives and will be firing the display.  If Buyer shoots the display, proof of liability 
insurance is required as stated in paragraph number five (5), proof of auto insurance (if pyrotechnics will be transported), 
and proof of worker’s compensation insurance coverage is required.  Buyer agrees to comply with all local, state, and 
federal guidelines pertaining to the storing and displaying of fireworks. 

 
2.   Payment.  The Buyer shall pay to the Seller (check one of the below options): 

 
             the sum of $                                         as a down payment upon execution of this Agreement.  The balance of 
$                                       shall be due and payable in full within fifteen (15) days after the date of the fireworks display.  A 
service charge of one and one-half percent (1 ½%) per month shall be added to the unpaid balance if the account is not 
paid in full within fifteen (15) days from the date of the show.  If this account remains unpaid and is turned over to a 
collection agency for non-payment, all fees incurred in collecting the balance will be at the Buyer’s expense.  All returned 
checks will be assessed a $30.00 fee. 

 
   $   in full by   (70 days prior to the event date). 
The Buyer will receive the 8% prepayment bonus product in this fireworks display. 

 
   $  in full by     (30 days prior to event date). 
The Buyer will receive the 5% prepayment bonus product in this fireworks display. 

 
3. Weather Delay/Cancellation.  Buyers intending to postpone a display due to inclement weather should contact 

J&M Displays as soon as possible to keep postponement fees to a minimum.  

The following postponement fees are applicable only if the display is re-scheduled in the same calendar year.  

• Displays postponed prior to being picked up at the magazine for delivery incur no postponement fee unless there 
are new costs associated with permit changes or display set-up has occurred prior to product delivery.  

• Displays postponed after they are in transit to the shoot site will be charged the full delivery fee.  
• Displays postponed after set-up by the shoot team will be charged delivery fee and 1.5 times the shoot fee for hand-

fired displays and double the shoot fee for E-fired displays.     
• Display set-ups that are allowed to remain on site overnight after a postponement to the following day will incur a fee 

of eight-percent (8%) of the total display budget. This will cover 24-hour security watch of fireworks and additional 
labor hours of shoot crew.                                               

Displays cancelled and NOT re-scheduled within the same calendar year will be charged thirty-percent (30%) of the total 
display budget. This fee will cover all labor associated with order processing, packing & shipping, display set-up if applicable 
and re-stocking fees.  

** Displays cancelled due to circumstances beyond customers control, such as burn bans or other bans issued by the AHJ 
will be considered on a case by case basis.     3

 WS #1.



J & M Displays, Inc. 2  

4.   Rain Date.   Should inclement weather prevent the firing of the display on the date mentioned herein, the 
parties agree to a mutually convenient rain date of                                                 or another date as agreed to by both 
parties.  Once display set-up has begun, the determination to cancel the fireworks display because of inclement weather 
or unsafe weather conditions shall rest within the sole discretion of the AHJ, Seller, and the lead pyrotechnician. 

 
5. Insurance. (Check one of the below options): 

 
              Seller agrees to provide, at its expense, general liability insurance coverage, in an amount not less than 
$10,000,000, and within two (2) weeks prior to the date of the fireworks display, shall submit to the Buyer, if requested in 
writing, a certificate of insurance. All entities listed on the certificate of insurance will be deemed an additional insured.  In 
the event of a claim by Buyer, the applicable deductible shall be paid by the Seller. 

The Seller agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and its agents, and employees from and 
against all claims, costs, judgments, damages and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees that may or shall arise 
from the performance of the fireworks by the Buyer.  The Buyer agrees to give the Seller prompt notice of any claims or 
demands and to cooperate with the Seller or its successors in interest or assigns, if any, in the defense of any such 
claims and/or demands. 

 
   Buyer agrees to provide, at its expense, general liability insurance coverage with a rating by AM  Best of A VIII or 
higher, in an amount not less than $5,000,000, and within two (2) weeks prior to the date of the fireworks display, 
shall submit to the Seller a certificate of insurance. All entities listed on the certificate of insurance will be deemed an 
additional insured. Any charge incurred from the insurance provider for additional insurance after insurance application 
has been sent in, shall be the responsibility of the Buyer. In the event of a claim by Seller, the applicable deductible shall 
be paid by the Buyer. 

 
The Buyer agrees to hold the Seller harmless and defend Seller from any and all claims brought against the 

Seller by employees or sponsors of the Buyer for any and all acts of the Buyer relating to the event for which the 
fireworks is performed. 

 
6. Buyer agrees to provide: 

 
(a) sufficient area for the display, including a minimum spectator set back as determined by Seller. 
(b) protection of the display area by roping off or similar facility. 
(c) adequate police protection to prevent spectators from entering display area. 
(d) dry, clean sand, if needed, for firing. 
(e) inspection and cleanup of fireworks debris in the fallout zone of the shoot site at first light the morning 
following the display for anything that may have been missed at the night search. 
(f) necessary local permits. 

 
7.  No representation of affirmation of fact, including but not limited to statement regarding capacity, suitability for 

use, or performance of equipment or products shall be, or deemed to be a warranty by the Seller for any purpose, nor 
give rise to any liability or obligation of the Seller whatsoever, except for acts of Seller’s negligence as above stated. 

 
8.  It is further understood and agreed that nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted to mean a 

partnership.  Both parties hereto being responsible for their separate and individual debts and obligations, and neither 
party shall be responsible for any agreements not stipulated in this Agreement. 

 
9.  The parties hereto do mutually and severally guarantee terms, conditions, and payments of this Agreement. 

This document shall be binding upon the parties, themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and 
assigns. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written. 

 
 
BY:     

J & M Displays, Inc. 
BY:     

SELLER BUYER 
 

Please include the DISPLAY INFORMATION form with this Agreement so your order is processed accurately. 
4

 WS #1.



 

18064 170th Avenue,  Yarmouth, Iowa 52660-9772
1-800-648-3890    •    Fax: 1-319-394-3265    •    main@jandmdisplays.com    •    www.jandmdisplays.com

J&M Displays Proposal for:
Moberly Parks & Recreation Department

$20,000

Flight 1

3 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Green peony $11.70 $23.40
2 Lemon Peony lemon tail $11.70 $23.40
2 Orange peony $11.70 $23.40
2 Peony with brocade ring assorted Brocade tail $11.70 $23.40
2 Pink Peony pink tail $11.70 $23.40
2 Purple peony $11.70 $23.40
2 Red peony $11.70 $23.40
2 White peony $11.70 $23.40
2 Blue peony $22.30 $44.60

Category Shell Count: 18 $231.80

Section Shell Count: 18

Main Event

Multi-shell Barrage Units
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Small finale 100 shot $298.60 $597.20

Category Shell Count: 200 $597.20

Ignition Items
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

460 Igniter 3 meter leads $1.95 $897.00
38 Igniter 4 meter leads $2.20 $83.60

Category Shell Count: 0 $980.60

3 Inch Salutes
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

10 Silver sparked salute with silver tail silver tail $10.85 $108.50

Category Shell Count: 10 $108.50

3 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Green, orange, and purple peony Gold tail $11.70 $23.40
2 Red  white and blue peony $11.70 $23.40
2 Red ring pattern $11.70 $23.40
2 Silver Spike $11.70 $23.40
2 White ring pattern $11.70 $23.40
2 Glittering willow glitter tail $22.30 $44.60
2 Assortment C of 20 (5 report& 15 color) shells ELECTRIC FIRE $229.00 $458.00
2 Assortment F of 20 different J&M Brand Shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $230.00 $460.00
1 Assortment M of 20 different J&M Brand Shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $230.00 $230.00
1 Assortment S of 10 pairs (20 shells) of J&M Brand shells (Low fallout) mixed tails $230.00 $230.00
1 Assortment Y of 10 pairs of 3" J&M shells ELECTRIC FIRE (Low fallout) $230.00 $230.00

Category Shell Count: 152 $1,769.60

Proposal #: 7190    Designed on: 2019-11-21 15:44:45    Printed on: Fri Nov 22 11:37:15 2019    Page: 1 of 6

                               1 / 6

5

 WS #1.



 

18064 170th Avenue,  Yarmouth, Iowa 52660-9772
1-800-648-3890    •    Fax: 1-319-394-3265    •    main@jandmdisplays.com    •    www.jandmdisplays.com

J&M Displays Proposal for:
Moberly Parks & Recreation Department

$20,000

Main Event

3 Inch Special Effect Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

4 Red and Blue ELECTRIC FIRE ONLY (cylinder) $30.65 $122.60

Category Shell Count: 4 $122.60

4 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Wave to variegated Silver tail $22.30 $44.60
2 Purple to dark to Green $37.70 $75.40
2 Red Coco Crossette red tail $37.70 $75.40
2 Red green and blue moving stars $37.70 $75.40
2 Six angle chrysanthemum Gold tail $37.70 $75.40
2 Assortment J of 20 different J&M Brand shells (LOW FALLOUT) $420.00 $840.00
2 Assortment L of 20 different J&M Brand Shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $420.00 $840.00
2 Assortment V of 20 different Patriotic J&M Brand shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $420.00 $840.00

Category Shell Count: 130 $2,866.20

4 Inch Special Effect shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Glittering silver to magenta to green strobe chrys $47.35 $94.70
2 Kamuro chrys niagara fall $47.35 $94.70

Category Shell Count: 4 $189.40

5 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

1 Assortment A of 15 Patriotic J&M shells ELECTRIC FIRE $540.00 $540.00
1 Assortment H of 15 different J&M Brand Shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $540.00 $540.00
1 Assortment J of 15 different shells (ELECTRIC FIRE ONLY) mixed tails $540.00 $540.00
1 Assortment N of 15 different J&M Brand shells ELECTRIC FIRE $540.00 $540.00
1 Assortment P of 10 Special J&M Brand pattern shells ELECTRIC FIRE $600.00 $600.00

Category Shell Count: 70 $2,760.00

5 Inch Special Effect Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

1 Golden wave to red to blue chrys $72.35 $72.35
1 Red crackling double hearts $72.35 $72.35

Category Shell Count: 2 $144.70

Proposal #: 7190    Designed on: 2019-11-21 15:44:45    Printed on: Fri Nov 22 11:37:15 2019    Page: 2 of 6

                               2 / 6

6

 WS #1.



 

18064 170th Avenue,  Yarmouth, Iowa 52660-9772
1-800-648-3890    •    Fax: 1-319-394-3265    •    main@jandmdisplays.com    •    www.jandmdisplays.com

J&M Displays Proposal for:
Moberly Parks & Recreation Department

$20,000

Main Event

6 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

1 Aqua chrys with gold willow to white strobe ring with delayed crackle pistil $86.80 $86.80
1 Blue dahlia w/crackling pistil $86.80 $86.80
1 Blue spiderweb with red strobe pistil $86.80 $86.80
1 Brocade ring with glitter pistil with double crackle rising flowers $86.80 $86.80
1 Chrysanthemum to time rain with time rain and coconut pistil $86.80 $86.80
1 Green strobe willow $86.80 $86.80
1 Green willow $86.80 $86.80
1 Magenta sky blue and lemon dahlia with white glitter pistil $86.80 $86.80
1 Red crossette $86.80 $86.80
1 Assortment A of 9 different Patriotic shells ELECTRIC FIRE $530.00 $530.00
1 Assortment C of 9 different J&M brand shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $530.00 $530.00
1 Assortment P of 9 different J&M brand shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $530.00 $530.00
1 Assortment W of 9 different J&M Brand Shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $530.00 $530.00

Category Shell Count: 45 $2,901.20

Section Shell Count: 617

Finales

3 Inch Finales
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

12 Color 10 Shot finale chain silver tail $139.80 $1,677.60
1 Report and palm 10 Shot finale chain $139.80 $139.80

Category Shell Count: 130 $1,817.40

4 Inch Finales
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

3 Red white and blue dahlia 8 shot finale chain mixed tails $221.15 $663.45
5 Red white and blue peony 8 shot finale chain mixed tails $221.15 $1,105.75

Category Shell Count: 64 $1,769.20

Section Shell Count: 194

8% Free for Early Payment

Multi-shell Barrage Units
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Variety color 50 shot $166.40 $332.80
2 100 CAKE - Gold tail to gold crown $298.60 $597.20

Category Shell Count: 300 $930.00

3 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Brocade crown with silver strobing pistil $22.30 $44.60
2 Glittering willow waterfall glitter tail $22.30 $44.60

Category Shell Count: 4 $1,019.20

Proposal #: 7190    Designed on: 2019-11-21 15:44:45    Printed on: Fri Nov 22 11:37:15 2019    Page: 3 of 6

                               3 / 6

7

 WS #1.



 

18064 170th Avenue,  Yarmouth, Iowa 52660-9772
1-800-648-3890    •    Fax: 1-319-394-3265    •    main@jandmdisplays.com    •    www.jandmdisplays.com

J&M Displays Proposal for:
Moberly Parks & Recreation Department

$20,000

8% Free for Early Payment

3 Inch Special Effect Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Gold Strobe Large Brocade tail $30.65 $61.30
2 White strobe $30.65 $61.30

Category Shell Count: 4 $1,141.80

5 Inch Special Effect Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

1 Twitter glitter to purple butterfly with green eyes $72.35 $72.35

Category Shell Count: 1 $1,214.15

Section Shell Count: 309

15% Free for Multiple Year Agreement

Multi-shell Barrage Units
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Silver tails to Red and silver strobe and blue 100 shot $166.40 $332.80
2 Super crown with blue stars with mines 49 shot $166.40 $332.80
2 8 X 5 Fan Shaped Golden crossette and red mines $216.80 $433.60
2 8 X 5 Fan Shaped Green strobe and brocade mines $216.80 $433.60

Category Shell Count: 394 $1,532.80

4 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Rainbow crossette $37.70 $75.40
2 Tracer assorted $37.70 $75.40

Category Shell Count: 4 $1,683.60

4 Inch Special Effect shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Lemon strobe $47.35 $94.70

Category Shell Count: 2 $1,778.30

5 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

1 Twitter glitter to red to blue with red strobe pistil $61.40 $61.40
1 Two times scattering with crackling pistil $61.40 $61.40

Category Shell Count: 2 $1,901.10

6 Inch Special Effect Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Aqua to crackling ghost peony $119.70 $239.40
1 Blue to red to crackling ghost peony $119.70 $119.70

Category Shell Count: 3 $2,260.20

Section Shell Count: 405

Proposal #: 7190    Designed on: 2019-11-21 15:44:45    Printed on: Fri Nov 22 11:37:15 2019    Page: 4 of 6

                               4 / 6

8

 WS #1.



 

18064 170th Avenue,  Yarmouth, Iowa 52660-9772
1-800-648-3890    •    Fax: 1-319-394-3265    •    main@jandmdisplays.com    •    www.jandmdisplays.com

J&M Displays Proposal for:
Moberly Parks & Recreation Department

$20,000

Free for Customer Satisfaction

3 Inch Finales
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Report and palm 10 Shot finale chain $139.80 $279.60

Category Shell Count: 20 $279.60

4 Inch Finales
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

1 Red white and blue peony 8 shot finale chain mixed tails $221.15 $221.15

Category Shell Count: 8 $500.75

Section Shell Count: 28

Proposal #: 7190    Designed on: 2019-11-21 15:44:45    Printed on: Fri Nov 22 11:37:15 2019    Page: 5 of 6

                               5 / 6

9

 WS #1.



 

18064 170th Avenue,  Yarmouth, Iowa 52660-9772
1-800-648-3890    •    Fax: 1-319-394-3265    •    main@jandmdisplays.com    •    www.jandmdisplays.com

J&M Displays Proposal for:
Moberly Parks & Recreation Department

$20,000
This proposal includes an extension of our $10,000,000.00 spectator liability insurance, and workers compensation on our shoot team.

Fireworks Price: $16,258.40

Discount: $1,308.40

Subtotal Fireworks: $14,950.00

Sales Tax:

Local Sales Tax:

Insurance Processing: $2,000.00

License and Permit: $50.00

Shoot Fee: $2,200.00

Delivery: $800.00

Musical Firing:

Shoot Cost:

Barge/Pontoon Fee:

Total Price of Show: $20,000.00

Total Shot Count: 1571

Packing Check: 647

Date of Display: 07/04/20

Customer Number: 

Summary of Free Items Added to Your Show
See Previous Pages for a Listing of Free Items
Free Items are Based on the $14,950.00 Fireworks Subtotal

$1,214.15 8% Free for Early Payment

$2,260.20 15% Free for Multiple Year Agreement

$500.75 Free for Customer Satisfaction

$3,975.10 Total Free

Total Value of Show is $25,283.50. Your Price is $20,000.00

Please Note the Following Comments:

The data in this proposal is confidential, and is to be accorded confidential treatment and shall not be disclosed other than to the official representative of the organization listed on the cover, and only then when in
the evaluation of this proposal. Any reproduction of the contents of this proposal, whether in whole or in part, is expressly forbidden. J&M Displays, Inc. requests that all information be safeguarded from release
pursuant to any request under the Freedom of Information Law of this state or any other state or jurisdiction; as it may cause competitive disadvantage to our company. The enclosed concepts and materials are the
sole and exclusive property of J&M Displays, Inc. We reserve the right to make substitutions of equal or greater value. Prices and specifications are subject to change without notice. For choreographed displays the
quantity and sizes of product may change based on the music selected; however, the dollar value of the product will remain the same.

 

Proposal #: 7190    Designed on: 2019-11-21 15:44:45    Printed on: Fri Nov 22 11:37:15 2019    Page: 6 of 6

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

                               6 / 6

10

 WS #1.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: December 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Approving A Development Agreement; Making Certain 

Findings And Ratifying Prior Acts; And Providing Further Authority. 

  

Summary: Since its creation in 2017, the Downtown Moberly Community Improvement 

District (the “District”) and the City of Moberly (the “City”) have worked 

cooperatively to improve the physical and economic environment and to 

alleviate blighted conditions extant within the City’s Central Business District.   

In furtherance of these goals, the City entered into a Memorandum of 

Understanding dated as of September 11, 2019 (the “MOU”) with Mashburn 

Development, LLC (the “Developer”) respecting the redevelopment of certain 

centrally located downtown properties for use as a boutique destination 

“Merchants’ Hotel” containing lodging, fine dining restaurants, convention 

and meeting areas, and retail space, all bringing increased patronage and 

enhancing the Moberly downtown area. 

 

The Developer has over thirty years’ experience in the design, development, 

construction and management of over 200 large hotel, convention center, 

resort and mixed use projects nation-wide totaling over $3,000,000,000 in 

development costs.  The Developer’s principals have held senior level 

positions with major regional hotel and resort developers and destination 

retailers including John Q. Hammons Hotels and Resorts, Bass Pros Shops, 

True North Hotel Group and Leisure Hotels and Resorts.  The MOU called for 

the negotiation of a definitive development agreement among the Developer, 

the City and the District respecting redevelopment the site of the City’s 

Municipal Auditorium and the structure formerly known as the “Kelly Hotel,” 

the adjacent City parking lot; and the commercial building known and 

numbered as 220 West Reed Street (the “Smith Building” and together with 

the Municipal Auditorium, the Kelly Hotel and the parking lot, the 

“Hotel/Convention Center Properties”). 

 

The proposed Purchase and Development Agreement (the “Development 

Agreement”) calls for the rehabilitation and reuse of the Hotel/Convention 

Center Properties by the Developer and the construction of a new multi-story 

hotel building replicating the look of the historic “Merchants Hotel” and 

containing approximately 68 sleeping rooms, together with a 150 seat 

restaurant with ancillary dining and lounge facilities; remodeling of the Kelly 

Hotel building as a hotel annex to provide approximately 32 additional 

sleeping rooms; construction of a two story open roofed parking garage (the 

“Parking Garage”); and improvements to the Municipal Auditorium.  Under 

the Development Agreement, the City will convey the Kelly Hotel and the 

Smith Building to the Developer and the Developer will additionally acquire 

the parking area between the Smith Building and the Commerce Bank 

building.  The Developer will expend approximately $14 Million to develop 

the Merchants’ Hotel and Kelly Hotel building as a high-quality boutique 

destination hotel and convention venue (the “Project”). The City will utilize 

Neighborhood Improvement District financing to construct the Parking Garage 
11

 WS #2.



and make improvements to the Municipal Auditorium at an approximate 

estimated total cost of $1,668,000. 

 

The City and the District will additionally provide to the Developer in 

consideration of the financing and development of the Project the following 

economic development and financing incentives.  These will be limited to and 

derived solely from incremental revenues generated by the Project:  

 

 1% of the City Sales Tax on all taxable “sales at 

retail” occurring within the one block Project 

area;   

 the District’s 1.0% Sales Tax on all taxable 

“sales at retail” occurring within the Project 

area; 

 one half of the City’s 4% lodging tax applicable 

to sales of sleeping rooms at the completed 

Project; and 

 franchise fees received by the City for electric 

power and other utility usage at the completed 

Project site. 

 

Moreover, the foregoing revenues shall be paid over only from amounts 

remaining after the allocation and use in the first instance of the portions of 

these revenues required to pay special assessments representing annual debt 

service on the NID Parking Garage financing.  

 

  

Recommended 

Action: Direct staff to bring to the January 6th 2020 Council meeting for final approval. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report     x  Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
        Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other        Passed Failed 

 
12

 WS #2.



1 

 
Ordinance Approving Development Agreement for Downtown Hotel Redevelopment 

BILL NO. ___________          ORDINANCE NO:  __________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT; MAKING 

CERTAIN FINDINGS AND RATIFYING PRIOR ACTS; AND PROVIDING 

FURTHER AUTHORITY. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, Sections 70.210 through 70.320 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as 

amended, authorize Missouri municipalities to contract with any private person, firm, association, 

or corporation for the planning, development, construction, acquisition, or operation of any public 

improvement or facility, or for a common service, provided, that the subject and purposes of any 

such contract or cooperative action are within the scope of the powers of such municipality; and  

 WHEREAS, the City of Moberly (the “City”) is the fee owner of certain improved real 

properties located within a portion of the City’s downtown area determined by the Council of the 

City (the “Council”) to be a “blighted area” (as that term is used and defined in Chapter 353 of 

the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) and to address and remediate blighted conditions 

within the aforesaid area, the City and the Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District 

(the “District”) have entertained proposals from interested persons to rehabilitate, improve and 

reuse the properties within the area (the “Request”); and  

 WHEREAS, in response to the Request, Mashburn Development, LLC (the “Developer”) 

has prepared and submitted to the City and the District a development program for the area which 

calls for construction of a new multi-story hotel building replicating the look of the historic 

downtown  “Merchants Hotel” and containing a restaurant with ancillary dining and lounge 

facilities; the remodeling and reuse of the City’s Kelly Hotel building; and improvements to the 

City’s Municipal Auditorium (collectively, the “Development Program”); and  

 WHEREAS, to facilitate and obtain the benefits of the Development Program, the City in 

concert with the District wishes to take certain actions and make available certain economic 

13

 WS #2.



2 

 
Ordinance Approving Development Agreement for Downtown Hotel Redevelopment 

development and financing incentives available under Missouri law, all in consideration of the 

Developer’s implementation of the Development Program; and 

 WHEREAS, the City, the District and the Developer have jointly prepared a development 

agreement in substantially the form set forth as Exhibit A to this Ordinance (the “Development 

Agreement”) which provides for, among other things, delineation of the respective parties 

responsibilities and obligations  in respect of the Development Program and the identification and 

commitment of the resources and financing incentives to be made available, and a timetable for 

implementation, and the City, the District and the Developer each now desire to enter into and be 

bound by the terms and conditions of and respective obligations imposed by the Development 

Agreement. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI, as follows, to wit: 

 SECTION 1. The Development Agreement in substantially the form of Exhibit A is 

hereby approved and the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the 

Development Agreement on behalf of the City. 

 SECTION 2. The Council hereby finds and determines that the implementation of the 

Development Program and the activities contemplated in the Development Agreement are 

reasonably anticipated to remediate blighting conditions present in the aforesaid area of the 

downtown and that the commitments and expenditures by the City provided for in the 

Development Agreement are within the scope of the City’s powers and are for a public purpose.  

Any and all acts heretofore taken by the City Manager, City staff, other agents of the City, or any 

of them taken in connection with the Development Program and the Development Agreement are 

hereby acknowledged, confirmed, ratified and approved. 

14

 WS #2.



3 

 
Ordinance Approving Development Agreement for Downtown Hotel Redevelopment 

SECTION 3. The Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk, and applicable City staff are hereby 

authorized and directed to take such further actions as may be necessary or convenient to carry out 

and satisfy the City’s obligations under the Development Agreement and to obtain the benefits of 

the Development Program for the residents of the City. 

 SECTION 4. The portions of this Ordinance shall be severable.  In the event that any 

portion of this Ordinance is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining 

portions of this Ordinance are valid, unless the court finds the valid portions of this Ordinance are 

so essential and inseparably connected with and dependent upon the void portion that it cannot be 

presumed that the Council of the City would have enacted the valid portions without the invalid 

ones, or unless the court finds that the valid portions standing alone are incomplete and are 

incapable of being executed in accordance with the legislative intent. 

 SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 

and adoption by the Council of the City and its signature by the officer presiding at the meeting at 

which it was passed and adopted. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri on this ____ day of 

_____________, 2019. 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Diane Kay Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk 

 

15

 WS #2.



4 

 
Ordinance Approving Development Agreement for Downtown Hotel Redevelopment 

EXHIBIT A 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

16

 WS #2.



 

1 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

PURCHASE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

THIS PURCHASE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made 

and entered into as of this ______ day of________________, 2019 (the “Effective Date”) by and 

among the CITY OF MOBERLY, a city of the third classification and Missouri municipal 

corporation located in Randolph County, Missouri and having a principal office at 101 West Reed 

Street – City Hall, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (the “City”); the DOWNTOWN MOBERLY 

COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a community improvement district and Missouri 

political subdivision established pursuant to the CID Act located within the corporate limits of the 

City and having a principal office at 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (the 

“District”); and MASHBURN DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Missouri limited liability company in 

good standing having a principal place of business at 1704 NW 450 Road, Kingsville, Missouri 

64061 (the “Developer”).  Capitalized terms used and not defined in this Agreement shall have 

the meanings respectively ascribed to them in Article I of this Agreement. 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. The City is the fee owner of certain improved real properties including the Kelly Hotel, the 

Parking Lot, and the Smith Building which are located within a designated redevelopment area 

determined by the City Council to be a “blighted area” (as that term is used and defined in Chapter 

353 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) and which are currently economically 

underutilized and, to address current conditions and to remediate blighted conditions within the 

aforesaid redevelopment area, the City and the District have entertained proposals from interested 

persons to rehabilitate, improve and reuse the Hotel/Convention Center Properties. 

 

B. In response, the Developer has prepared and submitted to the City the Minimum 

Development Program for the rehabilitation and reuse of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties 

and in connection therewith desires to have the City convey or cause to be conveyed to the 

Developer fee title to each of the Developer Acquired Properties and, together with the District, 

take certain actions and make available certain economic development and financing incentives 

available under Missouri law, all in consideration for the development by the Developer of the 

Project. 

 

C.  To facilitate the foregoing, the Developer and the City with the concurrence of the District 

have entered into the Memorandum of Understanding which the parties acknowledge is intended 

to serve as the basis of this Agreement and in furtherance of the understandings and commitments 

set forth in the Memorandum of Understanding, the City, the District and the Developer each now 

desire to enter into and be bound by the terms and conditions of and respective obligations imposed 

by this Agreement.  

 

AGREEMENT 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and the mutual covenants set 

forth in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency 

of which is hereby acknowledged, the City, the District and the Developer each hereby agrees as 

follows: 

17

 WS #2.



 

2 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

 

ARTICLE I. 

MEANINGS OF TERMS 

 

Section 1.1. Definitions.  Except as otherwise defined, as used in this Agreement, the following 

words and terms shall have the following meanings: 

 

 “Affiliate” shall mean an individual, corporation, association, partnership, limited liability 

company, joint venture, trust, estate, or other entity or organization, or any other such person or 

entity which, directly or indirectly, is Controlled by or is in common Control by the Developer 

and/or owners of membership interests of Developer.  

 

 “Applicable Regulations” shall mean, collectively, all federal, state and local laws, 

statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, executive orders and codes applicable to or affecting the 

Hotel/Convention Center Properties or the Project including, without limitation, the Building 

Regulations and all applicable federal and state environmental laws and regulations. 

 

 “Approving Ordinance” shall mean Ordinance No. ___ of the City adopted and approved 

by the City Council on ___________, 20___ approving this Agreement. 

 

 “Approving Resolution” shall mean Resolution No. ___ of the District adopted and 

approved by the Board of Directors of the District on ___________, 20___ approving this 

Agreement. 

 

 “Building Regulations” shall mean, collectively, those codes, ordinances, regulations and 

policies of the City including, without limitation, Chapter 6 of the Moberly City Code or 

subsequent successor enactments, now or at any subsequent time applicable to or governing the 

construction and maintenance of buildings and structures within the City.  

 

“Bond Counsel” shall mean Cunningham, Vogel & Rost, P.C., or other firm of nationally 

recognized bond counsel selected by the City. 

 “Certificates of Occupancy” shall mean one or more certificates of occupancy for any of 

the Hotel/Convention Center Properties properly and lawfully issued by the City in accordance 

with the Building Regulations. 

 

 “Certificate of Reimbursable Improvement Costs” shall mean a document, substantially 

in the form of Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated by reference in this Agreement, provided by 

the Developer to the City evidencing reimbursable costs incurred by the Developer of constructing 

the Parking Garage and making improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium, all subject to the 

terms, conditions and limitations of this Agreement. 

 

 “CID Act” shall mean the Community Improvement District Act, sections 67.1401 to 

67.1571 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended. 

 

18

 WS #2.



 

3 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

 “City” shall mean the City of Moberly, a Missouri municipal corporation and city of the 

third classification located in Randolph County, Missouri and having a principal office at 101 West 

Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270. 

 

“City Council” shall mean the duly elected and serving governing body of the City. 

 

“City Sales Tax” shall mean the combined tax levy by the City pursuant to applicable 

Missouri law on all taxable “sales at retail” (as that term is defined and used in chapter 144 of the 

Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) at the current combined rate of 2.50%. 

  

“Closings” shall mean the contemporaneous closings on the City’s acquisition of the West 

Parking Lot Area and the City’s conveyance to the Developer of the Developer Acquired 

Properties, all in accordance with Article II of and as further contemplated in this Agreement. 

 

“Closing Date” shall mean the date provided in Section 2.3 of this Agreement for the 

Closings. 

 

“Commerce Bank Property” shall mean the portions of the former Commerce Bank 

property situated at 208 West Reed Street, Moberly Missouri, designated as lots 7 through 12, 

inclusive, all as further depicted on Exhibit B, attached to and incorporated by reference in this 

Agreement. 

 

“Construction Contractors” shall mean those principal or general contractors (other than 

the Developer), if any, contractually obligated to undertake the construction of any portions of the 

Project with each designated in a writing to the City and the District by the Developer. 

 

 “Construction Plans” shall mean plans, drawings, specifications, and related documents, and 

construction schedules for the construction of the entire Project, together with all supplements, 

amendments or corrections, submitted by the Developer and approved by the City in accordance with 

this Agreement. 

 

 “Control” shall mean, as applied to any Affiliate, with respect to: (a) a corporation having 

stock, the ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the securities (as defined in 

Section 2(1) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) of any class or classes, the holders of 

which are ordinarily, in the absence of contingencies, entitled to elect a majority of the governing 

or directing body of such corporation; (b) a not for profit corporation not having stock, having the 

power to elect or appoint, directly or indirectly, at least a majority of the members of the governing 

or directing body of such corporation; or (c) any other entity, the power to direct the management 

of such entity through the ownership of at least a majority of its voting securities or the right to 

designate or elect at least a majority of the members of its governing or directing body, by contract 

or otherwise. 

 

 “Developer” shall mean Mashburn Development, LLC, a Missouri limited liability 

company in good standing having a principal place of business at 1704 NW 450 Road, Kingsville, 

Missouri 64061 or any Affiliate in accordance with Section 6.1 of this Agreement. 

 

19

 WS #2.



 

4 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

 “Developer Acquired Properties” shall mean the Kelly Hotel, the West Parking Lot Area, 

and the Smith Building to be acquired in fee by the Developer from the City in accordance with 

Article II of this Agreement in furtherance of the implementation of the Project. 

 

 “District” shall mean the Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District, a 

community improvement district and Missouri political subdivision established pursuant to the 

CID Act located within the corporate limits of the City and having a principal office at 101 West 

Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270. 

 

 “Effective Date” shall mean the date first above written. 

 

 “Feasibility Period” shall mean the One Hundred Fifty (150) day period following the 

Effective Date. 

 

“Force Majeure” shall mean actions or inactions not within the reasonable control of the 

Developer, including, without limitation, construction delays due to sustained inclement weather 

conditions, delays caused by competent legal authority, strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, riots, fire 

or other casualties, tornadoes, acts of God, acts of the public enemy, accidents, governmental 

restrictions, unanticipated or unusual site conditions, priorities regarding acquisition of or use of 

materials, litigation challenging any of the rights of the Developer under this Agreement, or delays 

caused by local, state or federal governments. 

 

 “Hotel/Convention Center Properties” shall mean, collectively, certain improved real 

properties situated in the City’s central business district and including: (i) the lot containing the 

structure formerly known as the “Kelly Hotel” and known and numbered as 109 North Clark Street 

(the “Kelly Hotel”); (ii) the adjacent City parking lot (the “Parking Lot”); (iii) numbered lots 5 

and 6 of the former Commerce Bank building located at 28 West Reed Street together with any 

easement appurtenant thereto (the “West Parking Lot Area”); and (iv) the commercial building 

and lot known and numbered as 220 West Reed Street (the “Smith Building”), together with the 

City’s Municipal Auditorium located at West Rollins and North Clark Streets, all as further 

depicted and legally described in Exhibit C, attached to and incorporated by reference in this 

Agreement. 

 

 “Investigations, Tests and Surveys” shall mean, without limitation, the following: (a) 

inspecting, surveying, making engineering, environmental and architectural studies, testing the soil 

(including borings) and any portion or element of any of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties 

(including lead paint testing) and otherwise determining the condition of the Hotel/Convention 

Center Properties or any of them; (b) reviewing all documents received from the City, all 

applicable subdivision, zoning, and building code ordinances, rules and regulations of the City, 

and of the State of Missouri; (c) determining that utilities, including, but without limitation, water, 

gas, electricity, telephone and cable television services, can be made available to adequately serve 

the improvements which are intended to be constructed on the Hotel/Convention Center 

Properties; and (d) determining all other matters regarding the physical condition of the 

Hotel/Convention Center Properties and the development thereof which the Developer deems 

appropriate. 

 

20

 WS #2.



 

5 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

 “IRC” shall mean shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the 

applicable regulations of the Treasury Department proposed or promulgated thereunder. 

 

 “Memorandum of Understanding” shall mean that certain Memorandum of 

Understanding dated as of September 11, 2019 by and between the City and the Developer defining 

the roles and responsibilities of each in the joint planning, funding, conveyance, and 

redevelopment of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties consistent with the Minimum 

Development Program and the business and marketing plans of the Developer and employing 

certain public incentives available from the City. 

 

 “Minimum Development Program” shall mean, collectively, construction of a new 

multi-story hotel building replicating the look of the historic “Merchants Hotel” and containing 

approximately 68 sleeping rooms, together with a 150 seat restaurant with ancillary dining and 

lounge facilities; remodeling of the Kelly Hotel building as a hotel annex to provide approximately 

32 additional sleeping rooms; construction of the Parking Garage; and the improvements to the 

City’s Municipal Auditorium listed on Schedule 1, attached to and incorporated by reference in 

this Agreement, all as further depicted and described in schematic drawings prepared by 

___________________, attached as Exhibit D to and incorporated by reference in this Agreement. 

 

“NID Act” shall mean the Missouri Neighborhood Improvement District Act, sections 

67.453 through 67.475 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended. 

 

“NID Bonds” shall mean one or more series of neighborhood improvement district limited 

general obligation bonds issued by the City pursuant to the NID Act and in general accordance 

with and subject to limitations of this Agreement, the proceeds of which shall be used to pay, 

among other things, the costs of constructing the Parking Garage and making improvements to the 

City’s Municipal Auditorium.  

 

“NID District” shall mean the “Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood 

Improvement District” established pursuant to the NID Act and this Agreement encompassing the 

property bounded by West Reed Street on the north, North Clark Street on the east, West Rollins 

Street on the south and North Williams Street on the west and containing the Hotel/Convention 

Center Properties and the Commerce Bank Property.  

 

“NID Petition” shall mean a proper petition for the establishment of the NID District which 

meets the requirements of section 67.457.3 of the NID Act and in substantially the form of Exhibit 

E, attached to and incorporated by reference in this Agreement. 

 

“NID Project Fund” shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to an ordinance 

of the City authorizing the issuance of the NID Bonds pursuant to this Agreement into which shall 

be deposited the cash sale proceeds of the NID Bonds after payment of all reasonable and 

customary costs of issuance of the NID Bonds, including, but not limited to underwriters’ discounts 

and fees, bond counsel and attorneys’ fees, financial advisor fees, bond registration fees, prepaid 

interest, debt service reserves, costs of printing any NID Bonds and any offering documents relating 

thereto, costs of credit enhancement, if any, and fees of any rating agency rating the NID Bonds, 

together with any interest earned thereon. 

21

 WS #2.



 

6 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

 

“Parking Garage” shall mean an elevated two-story open roof public parking garage 

constructed and located on the Parking Lot in accordance with this Agreement. 

 

  “Party” or “Parties” shall mean as applicable, the City, the District, and/or the Developer. 

 

 “Project” shall mean, collectively, all demolition, site work, site improvements, utilities 

installation, landscaping and new construction required for the redevelopment of the 

Hotel/Convention Center Properties as a high quality boutique destination hotel and convention 

venue in accordance with the Minimum Development Program or as such may be expanded 

pursuant to provisions of Section 3.1 of this Agreement.  

 

 “Purchase Price” shall mean the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) paid in hand by the 

Developer at or prior to closing on the transfer of the Developer Acquired Properties as set forth 

in Section 2.3 of this Agreement which amount shall constitute the entire purchase price for the 

Developer Acquired Properties. 

 

 “Third Party Action” shall mean any claim, action, proceeding or demand initiated at any 

time by any party other than a named Party to this Agreement and directed to the City or the 

District or any of their respective officials, officers, agents, attorneys, employees or representatives 

arising out of this Agreement, the Hotel/Convention Center Properties or any of them, the 

Commerce Bank Property, the Project, the Approving Ordinance, the Approving Resolution, the 

conveyances contemplated by this Agreement, any amounts paid or rebated to the Developer 

pursuant to Sections 4.1 or 4.2 of this Agreement, the NID Bonds, the commitments and 

allocations made under Sections 4.4 and 4.5 of this Agreement or any of them, or any portion(s) 

of any of the foregoing or any actions taken pursuant to any of the foregoing. 

 

 “Title Commitments” shall mean written commitments to issue one or more Title Policies 

for the Developer Acquired Properties provided by the Title Company in customary form.  

 

 “Title Company” shall mean a title insurance company selected by the City and 

reasonably acceptable to the Developer. 

 

 “Title Policies” shall mean one or more ALTA Owner’s Policies (6-17-06) of title 

insurance for the Developer Acquired Properties each of which shall contain an additional 

endorsement covering defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters, if any, 

created, first appearing in the public records or attaching subsequent to the date of the applicable 

Title Commitment but prior to the Closing Date. 

 

 “Zoning Approvals” shall mean any and all plat approvals, re-zoning or other zoning 

changes, site plan approvals, conditional use permits, design reviews, or other subdivision, zoning, 

site plan review, architectural or historic district review, or similar approvals required under 

Applicable Regulations for the implementation of the Project. 

 

Section 1.2. Rules of Construction.  Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and 

construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders.  Unless the context 

22

 WS #2.



 

7 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

shall otherwise indicate, the words importing the singular number shall include the plural and vice 

versa, and words importing person shall include firms, associations and corporations, including 

public bodies, as well as natural persons.  

 

Section 1.3. Computation of Time.  Wherever this Agreement calls for the performance of any 

act by reference to a day or number of days, to a month or number of months or to a year or number 

of years, each such computation shall be made based upon calendar days, calendar months, and 

calendar years, as applicable, unless otherwise expressly provided. 

 

ARTICLE II. 

PURCHASE AND TRANSFER OF PROPERTIES 

 

Section 2.1. Feasibility Period and Investigations.  The Developer shall have the right, but only 

during the Feasibility Period, to investigate title and to make such investigations, studies and tests 

with respect to the any of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties as the Developer deems necessary 

or appropriate to determine the feasibility of acquiring the Developer Acquired Properties and 

completing the Project.  During the Feasibility Period, the Developer may make Investigations, Tests 

and Surveys on any of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties as required to satisfy the Developer 

that the properties comprising the Hotel/Convention Center Properties including the Developer 

Acquired Properties are satisfactory for the Project.  The City shall provide to the Developer within 

Five (5) days after the Effective Date all documents and information relating to the portions of the 

Hotel/Convention Properties which are in the City’s possession or control, and other pertinent 

information in the City’s possession relating to the Hotel/Convention Properties, if any.  During the 

Feasibility Period, the City shall permit the Developer, its employees, agents, contractors and 

subcontractors to enter upon real property comprising the Smith Building, the Parking Lot, and the 

Kelly Hotel and shall use best efforts to cause the Developer to be permitted to enter upon the 

Commerce Bank Property and the West Parking Lot Area to perform Investigations, Tests and 

Surveys and the Developer shall indemnify and hold City and the District harmless from any and all 

claims related to the Developer, its employees, agents, contractors and subcontractors’ entry onto any 

of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties or the Commerce Bank Property to perform such 

Investigations, Tests and Surveys.  The Developer shall have until expiration of the Feasibility Period 

to satisfy itself, in its sole discretion, with respect to the condition of the Hotel/Convention Center 

Properties.  At any time prior to expiration of the Feasibility Period, the Developer may, in its sole 

discretion, for any reason or for no reason, terminate this Agreement by written notice to the City 

and the District.  Upon any such termination of this Agreement, no Party hereto shall have any further 

obligation or liability to any other with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.  

Failure of the Developer to timely exercise the aforesaid right to terminate this Agreement shall be 

deemed conclusive evidence of the Developer’s satisfaction with the results of the Investigations, 

Tests and Surveys and with the condition of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties including the 

Developer Acquired Properties. 

 

Section 2.2. Title Issues.  Within the first Twenty (20) days of the Feasibility Period the City shall 

order the Title Commitments for the Developer Acquired Properties and promptly upon receipt, the 

City shall transmit or cause to be transmitted to the Developer a copy or copies of the Title 

Commitments showing merchantable title of the City in the Developer Acquired Properties (other 

than the West Parking Lot Area) subject only to the following permitted exceptions: the Title 

23

 WS #2.



 

8 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

Company’s customary and standard exceptions; (b) all taxes and special assessments credited to 

the Developer at the Closings; (c) building and building lines, use and occupancy restrictions, 

conditions and covenants of record; (d) zoning laws and ordinances; (e) easements for the use of 

public utilities; (f) roads and highways; (g) drainage ditches, feeders and laterals; and (h) existing 

leases, if any, approved by the Developer.  The Developer shall have Fifteen (15) days after receipt 

of the last such Title Commitment to make any objections to any Title Commitment by sending the 

City notice thereof; provided that the Developer’s sole basis for any such objection shall be a 

demonstrated material impairment of the Developer’s ability to undertake the Project.  In the event 

of such an objection, the City shall have Ten (10) days after receipt of the Developer’s notice of 

objection to notify the Developer which objections the City is willing to attempt to cure, if any, 

and in the event the City is willing to attempt to cure the objection, the City shall have an additional 

Thirty (30) days to do so and the Feasibility Period shall be extended by such time.  If the City fails 

to so notify the Developer, then the City shall be deemed to have refused to cure any such 

objections.  To the extent that the City fails or refuses to cure any such objections, the Developer 

shall have the right to: (i) cancel this Agreement; or (ii) proceed to the Closings and accept title 

subject to the matters so objected to (which shall then become permitted exceptions).  At or before 

the Closings the City shall complete an ALTA Statement (or such other similar affidavit as may be 

currently used by the Title Company) and other documents required by the Title Company for 

clearance of all exceptions to title other than the foregoing permitted exceptions. 

 

Section 2.3. Closing Date; Utility Services; City’s Purchase of West Parking Lot.  The 

Closing Date shall be Ten (10) days after the earlier of: (i) delivery of written notice by the Developer 

to the City and the District of the Developer’s readiness to close; or (ii) the expiration of the 

Feasibility Period or such other date as may be mutually agreed among the Parties.  On or prior to 

the Closing Date, the City, at the City’s sole cost, shall purchase and acquire in fee the West Parking 

Lot Area at a purchase price not to exceed One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars and no 

cents ($125,000.00).  At all times prior to the Closing Date, the City shall maintain all insurance 

coverage currently in place with respect to the Kelly Hotel and the Smith Building and all utility 

services (including electrical, gas and water service) and City agrees to immediately notify the 

Developer of any damage to or affecting any of the foregoing properties.  At the Closings the City 

shall take such steps as a reasonably necessary and the Developer shall cooperate with the City to 

have all utility services at the Developer Acquired Properties transferred to and registered in the 

name of the Developer.   

 

 Section 2.3.1. Events At Closings; Transfers by Deed.  The Closings shall occur 

at the offices of the Title Company during normal business hours or at such other location as 

the Developer and the City with the consent of the District may mutually agree.  At the 

Closings, and upon payment of the Purchase Price by the Developer, the City shall transfer 

and convey to the Developer and the Developer shall accept all of the City’s right, title and 

interest in each of the Developer Acquired Properties.  Transfer shall be by one or more 

Special Warranty Deeds, each in such form reasonably acceptable to the Developer, free and 

clear of all tenancies, liens and encumbrances other than those created by this Agreement, or 

that are set forth in the Title Commitment and accepted by the Developer; provided that at 

the City’s discretion each such deed may contain a reverter or other required re-conveyance 

to the City in the event the Developer does not satisfactorily complete the Project.  All Title 

24

 WS #2.



 

9 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

Company closing costs and charges shall be shared equally between the City and the 

Developer.   

 

 Section 2.3.2. Prorations. All real estate taxes, and all other public or governmental 

charges and public or private assessments against the Property which are or may be payable 

on an annual basis (including liens or encumbrances for sewer, water, drainage or other public 

improvements whether completed or commenced on or prior to the Effective Date or 

subsequent thereto), shall be prorated as of the day prior to the Closing Date and shall be paid 

by the City (as a credit to the Developer), or if prepaid, credited to the City, and shall from 

and after the Closings be assumed and paid by the Developer, whether or not assessments 

have been levied as of the Closing Date, subject to reimbursement in accordance with Section 

4.1 of this Agreement.  Any tax proration shall be based upon the most recent assessment and 

shall be a final proration.  Each such Party shall execute, acknowledge, and deliver, after the 

Closings, such further assurances, instruments and documents as the other may reasonably 

request in order to fulfill the intent of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated 

hereby. 

 

 BY CLOSING ON THE DEVELOPER ACQUIRED PROPERTIES, THE 

DEVELOPER SHALL HAVE ACKNOWLEDGED AND HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES 

THAT THE DEVELOPER HAS HAD ADEQUATE OPPORTUNITY TO INSPECT, 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER ALL MATTERS AFFECTING THE USE, OWNERSHIP AND 

DEVELOPMENT OF THE HOTEL/CONVENTION CENTER PROPERTIES INCLUDING 

THE DEVELOPER ACQUIRED PROPERTIES AND EACH OF THEM AND THAT THE 

CONVEYANCE OF SAME BY THE CITY IS TO BE MADE ON AN “AS IS/WHERE IS” 

BASIS AND WITHOUT RECOURSE TO THE CITY.  THE CONVEYANCE TO THE 

DEVELOPER OF THE DEVELOPER ACQUIRED PROPERTIES SHALL BE WITHOUT 

REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND OR NATURE WHATSOEVER, 

EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION: (i) ANY IMPLIED 

WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS OR HABITABILITY, GOOD OR FAIR 

CONDITION OR REPAIR OR GOOD AND WORKMANLIKE CONSTRUCTION AND (ii) 

ANY WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS WITH RESPECT TO SITE CONDITIONS 

AS OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE AND OF THE CLOSINGS AND CONVEYANCES OF 

THE DEVELOPER ACQUIRED PROPERTIES OR POTENTIAL LIABILITIES UNDER 

OR WITH RESPECT TO ANY FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL LAW 

OR REGULATION, ALL OF WHICH WARRANTIES ARE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED 

BY THE CITY AND EACH OF WHICH DISCLAIMERS IS HEREBY AGREED TO AND 

ACCEPTED BY THE DEVELOPER.  THE FOREGOING SHALL NOT APPLY TO ANY 

BREACH OR DEFAULT BY THE CITY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR INSTRUMENT 

OR DOCUMENT EXECUTED OR PROVIDED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH. 

 

Section 2.4. Management Contract for Municipal Auditorium.  The City and the Developer 

hereby further agree and warrant each to the other to commence within Sixty (60) days of the Closing 

Date good faith negotiations of a management contract for the City’s Municipal Auditorium granting 

the Developer or the Developer’s designee “most favored nation” status with respect to rentals and 

use of the facilities and space comprising the City’s Municipal Auditorium.  The foregoing 

negotiations shall continue until the terms of a management contract consistent with the provisions 

25

 WS #2.



 

10 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

of the Memorandum of Understanding are established by the City and the Developer; provided that 

to the maximum extent feasible, the parties agree to incorporate such limitations and provisions as 

may be required under the IRC to preserve the interest on portions of the NID Bonds used to finance 

the improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium exempt from federal income taxation.  The 

City and the Developer hereby further agree and warrant each to the other to cooperate with one 

another in good faith to reduce such terms to a definitive management contract and to promptly 

execute and deliver same. 

 

ARTICLE III. 

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PROJECT 

 

Section 3.1. Applications for Zoning Reviews; City Approvals; Project Expansion.  Not later 

then Ten (10) days following expiration of the Feasibility Period, the Developer shall submit for City 

approval all required applications and supporting materials for the Zoning Approvals.  All plans 

submitted by or on behalf of the Developer shall depict and describe the improvements to be made to 

the Hotel/Convention Center Properties for the Project and shall reflect the provisions of the 

Memorandum of Understanding and incorporate the requirements of this Agreement.  The Developer 

shall diligently pursue the Zoning Approvals in accordance with the City’s normal procedures 

therefor.  The City agrees to expeditiously process and timely review all applications for the Zoning 

Approvals as received, all in accordance with the applicable City ordinances and laws of the State of 

Missouri, and to take all further actions as are consistent with the Memorandum of Understanding 

and this Agreement; provided that nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to require the City to 

grant any Zoning Approval, except in accordance with the City customary exercise of its police 

powers; and provided further that at the discretion of the Developer in consultation with the City and 

the District, the scope of the Project may be expanded beyond the Minimum Development Program 

to include remodeling, conversion and reuse of a portion of the Commerce Bank Property as a 

conference center or other annex to the Project.  To the extent that the Developer elects such an 

expansion, any Zoning Approvals or other approvals attending such expansion may be pursued 

concurrent with those of the original Project and, upon the grant of requisite Zoning Approvals or 

other approvals required under Applicable Regulations for such expansion, the scope of the 

“Project” (as that term is defined and used in this Agreement) shall be deemed to include such 

expansion.  

 

Section 3.2. Developer to Construct Project; Developer as City’s Limited Agent.  The 

Developer shall obtain requisite approvals and permits and commence construction of the Project in 

accordance with the schedule provided in this Section 3.2, all subject to Force Majeure.  As a 

component of the Project, the construction of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City’s 

Municipal Auditorium shall be undertaken by the Developer as limited agent for the City for such 

purpose and the City shall promptly grant such rights of access and egress and use of the Parking Lot 

and the City’s Municipal Auditorium as may be reasonably requested by the Developer to facilitate 

construction of the Parking Garage, the improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium, and the 

Project; provided that title to the Parking Lot shall at all times remain in the City and, promptly upon 

satisfactory completion of the construction of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City’s 

Municipal Auditorium, the Developer shall execute or cause to be execute such instruments and shall 

take or cause to be taken such actions as may be required to title all improvements, realty, and 

personalty at or serving the Parking Garage in the name of the City and to assign all attendant 

26

 WS #2.



 

11 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

equipment warranties and similar rights in connection with the construction and installation of the 

Parking Garage and the improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium to the City; and provided 

further that the Developer shall cause the applicable Construction Contractor to provide to the City a 

minimum One (1) year warranty against defects of all work performed and materials used in 

connection with the construction and installation of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the 

City’s Municipal Auditorium.  

 

 Section 3.2.1. Construction Plans.  Within Thirty (30) days following the granting 

by the City of Zoning Approvals for the Project, the Developer shall submit for approval by 

the City Construction Plans in sufficient completeness and detail to show that construction 

will satisfy the Minimum Development Program and be in conformance with the Zoning 

Approvals and with the provisions of the Memorandum of Understanding and this Agreement.  

The Construction Plans shall be prepared by a professional engineer or architect licensed to 

practice in the State of Missouri.  Construction Plans and all construction practices and 

procedures with respect to the Project shall be in conformity with all Applicable Regulations.  

The City hereby agrees to waive fees for building permits, sewer and water tapping fees, and 

all similar fees customarily applicable to the development and construction of the Project 

including any expansion thereof and the Hotel/Convention Center Properties. 

 

 Section 3.2.2. City Review and Approvals.  Upon submittal by the Developer of the 

Construction Plans, the City shall expeditiously review and approve or reject same, in writing 

within Thirty (30) days of receipt by the City of the Construction Plans.  If the City rejects 

any portion of the Construction Plans, said rejection shall specify any and all deficiencies in 

the Construction Plans relating to lack of conformity with the Zoning Approvals, the 

Memorandum of Understanding or this Agreement, the Minimum Development Program or 

with Applicable Regulations; provided that the City’s failure to specify deficiencies in the 

Construction Plans relating to Applicable Regulations shall not relieve the Developer of the 

Developer’s obligations to perform all construction work related to the Project in accordance 

therewith.  Following receipt of any such rejection, the Developer shall submit new or 

corrected Construction Plans within Thirty (30) days after the date the Developer receives 

written notice of the City’s rejection of the Construction Plans or portion thereof referred to 

in the latest such notice.  The provisions of this Section 3.2.2 relating to approval, rejection 

and resubmittal of the Construction Plans shall continue to apply to resubmittal of corrected 

Construction Plans until the Construction Plans have been approved by the City; provided that 

the periods for each such subsequent review by the City shall be reduced to Fourteen (14) 

days.  The Developer agrees that all construction work by or on behalf of the Developer or its 

Affiliates, agents or independent contractors shall be in substantial conformity with the 

Construction Plans as finally approved by the City. 

 

 Section 3.2.3. Time for Project Completion; Delays; Notification Required; 

Developer’s Control Over the Project.  Within Thirty (30) days of the City’s approval of 

the Construction Plans and issuance of requisite permits, the Developer shall commence or 

cause to be commenced and shall diligently pursue the construction and development of 

the Project to completion, and shall substantially complete the Project and obtain a 

Certificate of Occupancy for the Developer Acquired Properties not later than the later of 

(i)  Twenty-Two (22) months from the Effective Date; or (ii) Fifteen (15) months from the 

27

 WS #2.



 

12 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

date of receipt of the City’s approval of the Construction Plans and issuance of requisite 

permits for the Project, all subject to Force Majeure as provided in this Section 3.2.3.  The 

times within which the construction of the Project is to commence and be completed as set 

forth in this Section 3.2.3, shall be automatically extended appropriately as a result of any 

event of Force Majeure; provided that in the event of any such delays, the Developer shall 

promptly notify the City in writing stating the nature of the delay which, in the reasonable 

opinion of the Developer, justifies the extension.  Any delay under this Section 3.2.3 shall 

result in a day-for-day extension of any obligations, deadlines or dates set forth in this 

Agreement that are directly affected by such delay.  Other than time for completion 

requirements of this Section 3.2.3, the Developer shall have complete and exclusive control 

over the implementation and timing of the Project and the management and operation of 

the Project and the Hotel/Convention Center Properties, subject to the further requirements 

of this Agreement. 

 

 Section 3.2.4. Construction Contracts.  In constructing or causing the construction 

of the Project, the Developer may enter into one or more contracts with one or more 

Construction Contractors.  Prior to the commencement of construction, the Developer shall 

obtain or shall ensure that any such Construction Contractor obtains workers’ compensation, 

comprehensive public liability and builder’s risk insurance coverage in amounts customary in 

the industry for similar type projects.  Prior to commencement of construction, the Developer 

shall deliver to the City evidence of all insurance to be maintained by such Construction 

Contractors as required by this Section 3.2.4.  The Developer shall ensure that the insurance 

required is maintained by any such Construction Contractor for the duration of the 

construction of the Project.  To the extent that payment bond requirements of section 107.170 

of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, or successor enactments or prevailing wage 

or other wage and hour statutes or requirements apply to any portion of the Project, the 

Developer covenants and agrees on behalf of itself and for any Construction Contractor to 

take all such actions as are necessary to obtain such payment bonds, to apply for wage and 

hour determinations, and to otherwise comply with all such laws, regulations or requirements. 

 

Section 3.3.  Developer to Adhere to All Applicable Regulations.  To the full extent that any 

Applicable Regulation applies to any aspect of construction of the Project or any portion thereof, 

the Developer for itself and for any Construction Contractor or sub-contractor as agent of the 

Developer hereby covenants and agrees to take or cause to be taken all such actions as are necessary 

to fully comply with such Applicable Regulation.  The Project and any portions thereof shall be 

subject all lawful regulatory inspections and to periodic inspections by the City at reasonable times 

with prior notice to the Developer to determine compliance with the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement and the Developer shall promptly perform or cause to be performed all such necessary 

acts as may be required by Applicable Regulations or this Agreement.  With respect to the 

construction of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium, and 

any other portions of the Project to be conveyed or dedicated to the City or other public entity, the 

Developer as limited agent for the City shall additionally comply with and satisfy all requirements 

of section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended regarding the obtaining of 

payment bonds; the laws of the State of Missouri relating to the payment of prevailing wages; and 

the ordinances and purchasing policies of the City including any requirement for competitive 

bidding of contractor and subcontractor services. 

28

 WS #2.



 

13 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

 

Section 3.4. Breach and Compliance; Right to Cure; Remedies Not Exclusive.  In the event 

of substantial non-compliance with any of the terms of this Article III, written notice of same may 

be delivered to the Developer by the City or by the District, and, if the Developer shall not have 

corrected such substantial non-compliance within Forty-Five (45) days after receipt of such notice 

(unless the time for such correction is further extended in writing by the City or the District, as 

applicable, or unless such correction reasonably requires more than 45 days to correct; provided 

that, the Developer in each case diligently pursues such correction to satisfactory completion), the 

City or the District may institute such proceedings as may be necessary or desirable in the City’s 

or the District’s sole opinion to cure and remedy such default including, without limitation, the 

remedy of specific performance.  None of the foregoing remedies shall be exclusive of any other 

remedy specified in this Section 3.4 or otherwise available to the City or the District at law or in 

equity and any and all such remedies may be exercised by the City or the District individually, 

sequentially, collectively, or in the alternative, all at the City’s or the District’s sole discretion. 

 

ARTICLE IV. 

CITY, DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS, COMMITMENTS AND INCENTIVES 

 

Section 4.1. Real Property Tax Relief.  In consideration of the foregoing undertakings and 

covenants of the Developer set forth in Article III of this Agreement, the District during the life 

of the District, but in no event later than the period which is Twenty-Five (25) years from the date 

of substantial completion of the Project in accordance with Section 3.3.3 of this Agreement shall 

annually rebate to the Developer all amounts actually collected on behalf of and received by the 

District (as verified by the District) in such year from levies of the District’s Special Real Property 

Tax in respect of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties and, in the event that the Project is 

expanded as provided in Section 3.1 of this Agreement, the portions of the Commerce Bank 

Property included in such Project expansion.  Rebates applicable to any tax year shall be made not 

later than the last day of February of the succeeding tax year.  All such payments by the District 

shall be subject to annual appropriation by the Board of Directors of the District and in each case 

shall be considered current year expenses in the year to which they apply.  In addition, to the extent 

that the District expires or is dissolved prior to the date which is Twenty-Five (25) years from the 

date of substantial completion of the Project, the City agrees to use best efforts to take such actions, 

hold such hearings, and grant such approvals under one or more then applicable redevelopment 

statutes to provide for equivalent annual real property tax relief in respect of the Hotel/Convention 

Center Properties and, as applicable, the portions of the Commerce Bank Property included in a 

Project expansion the for the period remaining of the aforesaid 25 years. 

 

Section 4.2. City Sales Tax.  The City shall cause to be paid directly to the Developer from 

lawfully available funds an amount equal to the revenue actually paid to and received by the City 

(as verified by the City) as provided in this Section 4.2 by the Developer during the period 

provided in this Agreement for completion of the Project which was generated by the levy of the 

City Sales Tax on purchases by the Developer or on behalf of the Developer by a Construction 

Contractor, but only from vendors or suppliers having a principal place of business within the 

County of Randolph, of tangible materials and personal property actually incorporated into or 

consumed in the construction of the Project; provided that in each case, any excess re-salable 

tangible personal property or materials which were purchased for the Project by the Developer or 

29

 WS #2.



 

14 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

on behalf of the Developer by a Construction Contractor but which were not incorporated into or 

consumed in the construction of the Project shall either (i) be returned to the supplier for credit or 

the appropriate sales tax on such excess property; or (ii) be reported on a return and paid by the 

Developer or a Construction Contractor and in either case shall be deducted from the amounts due 

from the City; and provided further that notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the 

contrary, the parties hereto acknowledge that provision for amounts constituting any portion of the 

payments made or to be made pursuant to this Section 4.2 which extend for any reason beyond 

any calendar year in which such cost is incurred shall be subject to annual appropriation by the 

City Council. 

 

 Section 4.2.1. Frequency of Payments; Application and Verification 

Required; Cooperation; Current Year Expenses.  Payments as set forth in Section 4.2 

of this Agreement shall be made, subject to annual appropriation by the City Council, 

quarterly and upon written application by the Developer, together with submittal by the 

Developer, of accompanying receipts and documentation as or similar to that required by 

sections 144.635 and 144.640 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, and 

reasonably sufficient in content and detail (in the sole judgment of the City) to permit the 

applicable officer of the City to reasonably verify the City Sales Tax amounts actually paid 

by the Developer or on behalf of the Developer by a Construction Contractor for purchases, 

but only from vendors or suppliers having a principal place of business within the County 

of Randolph, of tangible materials and personal property actually incorporated into or 

consumed in the construction of the Project during the period provided in this Agreement 

for the completion of the Project.  Payments as set forth in Section 4.2 of this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be current expenses in the applicable year to which such payments apply 

 

 Section 4.2.2. Exemption Certificate.  The City shall prepare and furnish to 

Construction Contractors a sales tax exemption certificate containing the information set 

forth in section 144.062 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, authorizing tax-

exempt purchases of tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated into or 

consumed in construction but only for those portions of the Project to be owned or held by 

the City or the District and related to the City’s or the District’s exempt functions and 

activities.  Any excess resalable tangible personal property or materials which were 

purchased for the portions of the Project to be owned or held by the City or the District and 

related to the City’s or the District’s exempt functions and activities by a Construction 

Contractor or subcontractor under the aforesaid exemption certificate but which were not 

incorporated into or consumed in the construction of such portions of the Project shall 

either be returned to the supplier for credit or the appropriate sales or use tax on such excess 

property or materials shall be reported on a return and paid by such Construction Contractor 

or subcontractor not later than the due date of that Construction Contractor’s or 

subcontractor’s Missouri sales or use tax return following the month in which it was 

determined that the materials were not to be used in such portions of the Project.  In the 

event for any reason, (i) the City is found not to have had the authority to issue the 

exemption certificate provided for in this Section 4.2.2, in whole or in part; or (ii) any 

Construction Contractor or subcontractor under color of the exemption certificate shall 

make tax-exempt purchases of personal property and materials which are not incorporated 

into or consumed in the construction of those portions of the Project to be owned or held 

30

 WS #2.



 

15 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

by the City or the District and related to the City’s or the District’s exempt functions and 

activities, then the Developer shall be liable to the City for payments or repayments of any 

tax found to be owed on such personal property and materials. 

 

Section 4.3. NID Financing.  The City and the Developer shall cooperate to obtain financing 

under the NID Act for the construction of the Parking Garage and the installation of improvements 

to the City’s Municipal Auditorium as provided in this Section 4.2.  Contemporaneous with the 

approval and execution of this Agreement, the City and the Developer by preparing and filing with 

the Clerk of the City the NID Petition and will expeditiously take such steps as are required under 

the NID Act to establish the NID District.  During and subject to the Feasibility Period, the City 

shall expeditiously cause preparation, in cooperation with Developer, of plans and specifications 

describing the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium in detail 

sufficient in the determination of Bond Counsel for inclusion in the ordinances approving the NID; 

cause preparation of requisite assessment rolls; conduct required public hearings; order that 

improvements be made and that associated assessments be levied.  At the earliest feasible time 

consistent with market conditions and the application of prudent public finance principles the City 

shall, subject to availability of underwriting reasonably acceptable to the City, order and direct the 

issuance of the NID Bonds, all in accordance with this Agreement. 

 

 Section 4.3.1. Terms of NID Bonds; Procedures for Issuance.  The Developer 

agrees to advance the costs of constructing the Parking Garage and the improvements to 

the City’s Municipal Auditorium as set forth on Schedule 1 to this Agreement, subject to 

reimbursement in accordance with Section 4.3.2 of this Agreement from monies deposited 

in the NID Project Fund and the City agrees to issue the NID Bonds, all as required by this 

Agreement, in an aggregate principal amount necessary to provide a minimum NID Project 

Fund of $_____________.  All costs of constructing the Parking Garage and the 

improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium shall be paid from NID Project Fund.  

In conjunction with the issuance of the NID Bonds, the City shall select one or more 

underwriters or purchasers of the NID Bonds.  Each series of NID Bonds shall bear interest 

at such rates, shall be subject to redemption, and shall have such terms as the City, acting 

through Bond Counsel and the respective underwriter or purchaser, shall determine.  The 

City and the Developer hereby agree to assist and cooperate with one another and with 

Bond Counsel, the underwriter(s) or purchaser(s), in the preparation of offering statements, 

private placement memoranda or other disclosure documents and all other documents 

necessary to market and sell the NID Bonds.  The NID Project Fund shall be held by the 

City in the custody of the City’s Director of Finance and amounts therein shall be disbursed 

to the Developer as reimbursements upon satisfactory completion of the portions of each 

improvement as further set forth in Section 4.3.2 of this Agreement.  The City shall retain 

interest on all amounts held in the NID Project Fund.  In the event that the NID Bonds have 

not been successfully marketed, underwritten and sold by the City prior to construction of 

the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium as set forth 

on Schedule 1 to this Agreement, the City shall issue temporary notes to temporarily 

reimburse Developer for its costs upon satisfactory completion of the portions of each 

improvement as further set forth in Section 4.3.2 of this Agreement and the City shall be 

reimbursed and the temporary notes retired upon receipt of the proceeds from the sale of 

the NID Bonds. 

31

 WS #2.



 

16 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

 

 Section 4.3.2.  Payment of NID Assessments; Reimbursements to Developer.  

The City shall pay from lawfully available funds, subject to annual appropriation, all 

assessments to be levied under the NID Act against any and all platted lots and parcels of 

real property within the NID District, whether or not owned by the Developer or any 

Affiliate or by any other party, on or before the date such assessments are due.  Requests 

for reimbursement of costs incurred by or on behalf of the Developer in connection with 

the construction of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City’s Municipal 

Auditorium shall be submitted not more frequently than quarterly.  Each request for 

reimbursement shall be accompanied by a Certificate of Reimbursable Improvement Costs 

and shall in each case be further evidenced by: (i) copies of each invoice prepared by the 

applicable vendor, contractor or other supplier for which a reimbursement is sought; and 

(ii) copies of cancelled check(s), front and rear, or other evidence of payment of such 

invoice.  The City reserves the right to reject and require resubmittal of any request which 

does not satisfy the foregoing requirements, which determination of sufficiency shall be in 

the City’s discretion, exercise of which discretion shall be dispositive.  Until the acceptance 

by the City of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium, 

the Developer shall maintain each such improvement in a first-class and workman-like 

manner in accordance with applicable City standards and in a condition reasonably 

satisfactory to permit such acceptance by the City or other applicable public entity.  The 

City agrees to accept the aforesaid improvements (or portions thereof) as soon as is 

reasonably practicable; provided that construction and installation of each such 

improvement (or portion) to be accepted complies in all material respects with provisions 

of this Agreement. 

 

Section 4.4. Other Commitments and Contributions; Allocations.  To further assist and 

support the implementation and financing of the Project, the City and the District hereby agree, 

subject to satisfactory completion by the Developer of the entire Project, to the full extent lawful 

to pledge and utilize toward the payment or financing of Project costs certain portions of revenues 

actually paid to and received by the City and the District, as applicable, but only from economic 

activities at the completed Project and in amounts which are over and above such amounts required 

to pay assessments levied under the NID Act and necessary to meet annual debt service 

requirements on the NID Bonds so long as the NID Bonds or any portion thereof remain 

outstanding, as follows: 

 

  (i) portions of the City Sales Tax allocable to capital improvements and 

transportation improvements; 

  (ii) the District’s 1.0% sales tax on all taxable “sales at retail” (as that term is 

defined and used in chapter 144 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) occurring 

within the area of the NID District; 

  (iii) one half of the City’s 4% lodging tax applicable to sales of sleeping rooms 

at the completed Project; and 

  (iv) franchise fees received by the City for electric power and other utility usage 

at the completed Project. 

 

32

 WS #2.



 

17 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

The foregoing revenues shall be calculated by the City and the District on an annual basis for a 

period coterminous with the term of the NID Bonds and shall be paid, subject to annual 

appropriation by the governing bodies of the City and the District, respectively, to or to the order 

of the Developer or Affiliate or their designee not later than the last day of February of the 

succeeding year; provided that the City reserves the right to apply for and use such grant funds as 

made be made available at any time during the period required for construction of the Project and 

to substitute such amounts for any of the aforesaid revenue sources and in each such case, the City 

shall continue to calculate annually amounts attributable to revenue sources identified in clauses 

(i), (iii) and (iv) of this Section 4.4 and shall pay to the order of the Developer or Affiliate or their 

designee, subject to annual appropriation by the City Council, such amounts whether from such 

revenue sources, from grant funds received, or from any combination of the foregoing; and 

provided further that any such amounts shall only be paid after and from amounts remaining from 

the aforesaid sources after payments by the City from such sources of assessments levied under 

the NID Act and necessary to meet annual debt service requirements on the NID Bonds; it being 

understood and agreed by the parties to this Agreement that the revenue sources identified in 

clauses (i) through (iv) of this Section 4.4 shall provide the source of payment in any year of 

assessments levied under the NID Act on properties within the NID District which payment shall 

be a pre-requisite in any year for any payments under this Section 4.4 to the Developer or Affiliate 

or their designee.  Monies paid to or to the order of the Developer or Affiliate or their designee 

shall only be used and applied for lawful purposes.  

 

Section 4.5. Further Cooperative Efforts.  The City, the District, and the Developer each agree 

to take such actions, including the execution and delivery of such documents, instruments, petitions 

and certifications supplemental hereto as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the terms, 

provisions and intent of this Article IV and the Agreement and which do not impair the rights of the 

signing party as they exist under this Agreement, and to aid and assist each other in carrying out said 

terms, provisions and intent.  Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, the City and the 

District each agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate with and assist the 

Developer (i) to identify and secure additional and complementary investment in or near the 

Project and to identify potential end users of space within the Hotel/Convention Center Properties; 

(ii) to obtain inclusion of the Kelly Hotel on the National Register of Historic Places and in 

applications for historic preservation tax credits or other similar tax credits as and when available 

for the rehabilitation of the Kelly Hotel building; provided that the Developer shall be under no 

obligation to make applications to include the Kelly Hotel on the National Register of Historic 

Places or for historic preservation tax credits or other tax credits; (iii) to secure such additional 

private source funding as may be necessary or convenient to carry out the rehabilitation of the 

Hotel/Convention Center Properties; provided that nothing in the foregoing clause shall be deemed 

to require a financial contribution, pledge or commitment from the City or the District other than 

the express commitments made in Sections 4.1 through 4.4, inclusive of this Agreement; and (iv) 

to make approaches to local business and civic entities to secure commitments for hotel facility 

patronage during the first Three (3) years following completion of the Project.  In addition to the 

foregoing, subject to satisfactory completion of the entire Project in accordance with this 

Agreement, the City and the District agree to commit additional funding but only from lawfully 

available sources and undertake on behalf of the Project marketing and promotion efforts during 

the first Three (3) years of operation of the Project. 

 

33

 WS #2.



 

18 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

ARTICLE V. 

FURTHER OBLIGATIONS; DEVELOPER REPRESENTATIONS 

 

Section 5.1. Indemnification; Third Party Actions.  The Developer shall have the right, but 

not the obligation, to assume the costs of defense of any Third Party Action (including, without 

limitation, to settle or compromise any claim or action for which the Developer has assumed the 

defense) with counsel of the Developer’s choosing and reasonably acceptable to the City and the 

District and the City, the District and the Developer each agrees that so long as no conflicts of 

interest exist between or among them, the same attorney or attorneys may simultaneously represent 

the City, the District, and the Developer in any such proceeding; provided that in the event the 

Developer elects not to assume the costs of defense or subsequently abandons the defense of any 

Third Party Action undertaken by the Developer, in no event shall the City or the District have any 

obligation to assume such defense.  In each Third Party Action for which the Developer has 

assumed the costs of defense, the Developer shall indemnify and hold the City and the District 

together with their respective officials, agents, employees, attorneys, and representatives acting in 

any capacity harmless from all such Third Party Actions.  In no event shall the City or the District 

have any obligation to initiate or to assume the defense of any Third Party Action nor shall the 

City or the District nor any officer, official, agent, attorney, employee or representative of the 

either of them have any liability to the Developer or any officer, agent, employee or representative 

of the Developer for damages, costs or otherwise in the event that all or any part of this Agreement, 

the Approving Ordinance, the Approving Resolution, the conveyances set forth in Article II of 

this Agreement or any of them, the provisions for payment or rebate of City Sales Tax amounts 

set forth in Section 4.1 or 4.2 of this Agreement, the NID Bonds, the commitments and allocations 

made under Sections 4.4 and 4.5 of this Agreement or any of them, or any of the transactions or 

undertakings contemplated under this Agreement shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional in 

whole or in part by a final (as to which all rights of appeal have been exhausted or expired) 

judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, or as a result of initiation of any claim, action or 

proceeding, the Developer is prevented from enjoying any of the rights and privileges of the 

Developer under this Agreement.   

 

Section 5.2. Representations of Developer.  The Developer hereby represents and warrants to 

the City and the District that as of the Effective Date and as of the Closing Date: 

 

(a) The Developer is a duly organized Missouri limited liability company existing and 

in good standing under the laws of the State of Missouri;  

 

(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Developer will not conflict 

with or result in a breach of any of the terms of, or constitute a default under, any indenture, 

mortgage, deed of trust, lease or other agreement or instrument to which the Developer or any 

Affiliate is a party or by which the Developer or any Affiliate is bound or any applicable articles 

of organization, or operating agreement, or any of the rules or regulations of any governmental 

authority applicable to the Developer or any Affiliate;  

 

(c) The Developer has full corporate power to execute and deliver and perform the 

terms and obligations of this Agreement.  The Developer has been authorized by all necessary 

action to execute and deliver this Agreement, which shall constitute the legal, valid and binding 

34

 WS #2.



 

19 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

obligation of the Developer, enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy and 

other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and to general principles of equity; 

 

(d) There are no actions or proceedings by or before any court, governmental 

commission, board, bureau, or any other administrative agency pending, threatened, or affecting 

the Developer or any Affiliate or any property thereof that would impair the Developer’s ability to 

perform under this Agreement; and 

 

(e) The Developer has obtained or will obtain as and when required by Applicable 

Regulations, and shall maintain, all government permits, certificates, and consents (including, 

without limitation, environmental approvals required by any Applicable Regulation) necessary to 

conduct the Developer’s business and to construct, complete, and operate the Project. 

 

Section 5.3. Survival of Covenants.  All warranties, representations, covenants, and 

agreements of the Developer contained in this Article V shall survive termination of this 

Agreement for any reason. 

 

ARTICLE VI. 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

Section 6.1. Assignment Limited.  The Developer shall have the right to assign this Agreement 

in whole or in part at any time, but only to an Affiliate and upon written notice of such assignment 

to the City and the District.  Other than the foregoing, the Developer may not sell, assign or 

otherwise transfer its interest in this Agreement in whole or in part to any other individual or entity 

other than to an Affiliate without the written consent of the City which consent shall not be 

unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 

 

Section 6.2.  Term of Agreement.  Unless terminated prior to the Closing, this Agreement shall 

continue in force: (a) so long as any payments by the City required under Section 4.1 of this 

Agreement remain unsatisfied; or (b) the date of the defeasance and satisfaction of the NID Bonds, 

whichever is later.  The rights and privileges granted to and the duties and obligations imposed on 

the Developer by this Agreement shall apply only to the Project and the Hotel/Convention Center 

Properties. 

 

Section 6.3. Notices.  Whenever notice or other communication is called for in this Agreement 

to be given or is otherwise given, such notice shall be in writing addressed to the addressees at the 

addresses set forth below, and transmitted by any of the following means: (a) personal service; (b) 

overnight courier; or (c) registered or certified United States mail, return receipt requested: 

 

  If to the City:  City of Moberly  

      101 West Reed Street - City Hall 

     Moberly, Missouri 65270 

     Attention:  City Manager 

 

     with a copy to:  Cunningham, Vogel & Rost, P.C. 

         333 South Kirkwood Road, Suite 300 

35

 WS #2.



 

20 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

         St. Louis, Missouri 63122 

         Attention:  Thomas A. Cunningham, Esq. 

 

  If to the District: Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District 

     101 West Reed Street  

     Moberly, Missouri 65270 

     Attention:  Chair 

 

If to the Developer: Mashburn Development, LLC 

1704 NW 450 Road 

Kingsville, Missouri 64061 

Attention:  David Mashburn 

 

With a copy to:  __________________________ 

     __________________________ 

     __________________________ 

     Attention: _________________ 

 

or to such other persons as any of the Parties may designate in writing from time to time in 

accordance with this Section 6.3 and all said notices shall be deemed given, as applicable, (a) upon 

hand delivery, (b) upon deposit with an overnight courier, or (c) upon deposit in the United States 

mail. 

 

Section 6.4. Further Assistance.  The City, the District, and the Developer each agree to take 

such actions and execute such documents and instruments as may be reasonably necessary or 

appropriate to carry out the terms, provisions and intent of this Agreement and to aid and assist 

each other in carrying out said terms, provisions and intent. 

 

Section 6.5. Survival; Severability.  Any provisions of this Agreement that by their terms 

provide for or contemplate obligations or duties of a Party that are to extend beyond the expiration 

or termination of this Agreement (and the corresponding rights of the other Party to enforce or 

receive the benefit of such obligations or duties) shall survive such expiration or termination of 

this Agreement for any reason.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable.  If 

any word, phrase, term, sentence, paragraph, or other portion of this Agreement shall, at any time 

or to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected 

by such partial invalidity, and each remaining word, phrase, term, sentence, paragraph covenant, 

or other portion of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by 

law. 

 

Section 6.6. Headings; No Presumption; Agreement Preparation.  The headings and 

captions of this Agreement are for convenience and reference only, and in no way define, limit, or 

describe the scope or intent of this Agreement of any provision thereof and shall in no way be 

deemed to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation or construction of the provisions of 

this Agreement.  Each Party to this Agreement and their attorneys have had full opportunity to 

review and participate in the drafting of the final form of this Agreement and all documents 

attached as exhibits.  This Agreement shall be construed without regard to any presumption or 

36

 WS #2.



 

21 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

other rule of construction whereby ambiguities within this Agreement or such other document 

would be construed or interpreted against the Party causing the document to be drafted.  The Parties 

hereto each further represent that the terms of this Agreement and the documents attached as 

exhibits hereto have been completely read by them and that those terms are fully understood and 

voluntarily accepted by them.  In any interpretation, construction or determination of the meaning 

of any provision of this Agreement, no presumption whatsoever shall arise from the fact that the 

Agreement was prepared by or on behalf of any Party hereto. 

 

Section 6.7. Choice of Law; Venue; Waiver of Objections.  This Agreement and its 

performance shall be deemed to have been fully executed, made by the Parties in, and governed 

by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri applicable to contracts made 

and to be performed wholly within such state, without regard to choice or conflict of laws 

provisions.  The Parties hereto each agree that any action at law, suit in equity, or other judicial 

proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Randolph 

County, Missouri or in federal court of the Eastern District of Missouri and waive any objection 

based upon venue or forum non conveniens or otherwise. 

 

Section 6.8. Entire Agreement; Amendments; No Waiver by Prior Actions.  The Parties 

hereto agree that this Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and no 

other agreements or representations other than those contained in this Agreement have been made 

by the Parties.  This Agreement shall be amended only in writing and effective when signed by the 

duly authorized agents of the Parties.  The failure of any Party hereto to insist in any one or more 

cases upon the strict performance of any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement to be 

performed or observed by another Party shall not constitute a waiver or relinquishment for the 

future of any such term, covenant or condition. 

 

Section 6.9. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity; Public Liability Strictly Limited; No 

Personal Liability.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or deemed to constitute a waiver 

of the City’s or the District’s sovereign immunity.  The Parties hereto agree that in no event shall 

the City, the District or any of their respective officials, officers, agents, attorneys, employees, or 

representatives have any liability in damages or any other monetary liability to the Developer or 

any Affiliate, assignee, sublessee, successor, assign, heir or personal representative of the 

Developer in respect of any suit, claim, or cause of action arising out of this Agreement other than 

for a failure of payment of the amounts agreed to be paid by the City or by the District, the remedy 

for which failure shall be limited to a suit for specific performance and no consequential or other 

damage theories shall be applied, all of which theories in consideration of the undertakings of the 

City and the District under this Agreement are hereby irrevocably waived by the Developer for 

itself and for any Affiliate, assignee, sublessee, successor, assign, heir or personal representative 

of the Developer.  No official, officer, agent, attorney, employee, or representative of the City or 

of the District shall be personally liable to the Developer or any Affiliate or the assignees, 

sublessees, successors, assigns, heirs or personal representatives of the Developer or Affiliate in 

the event of any default or breach by any party under this Agreement, or for any amount which 

may become due to any party or on any obligations under the terms of this Agreement. 

 

Section 6.10. Relationship of the Parties; No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing contained 

in this Agreement nor any act of the Developer or the City shall be deemed or construed to create 

37

 WS #2.



 

22 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

a partnership or agency relationship between or among the Parties or their agents or representatives 

and this Agreement is and shall be limited to the specific purposes set out herein.  Other than as 

expressly provided in this Agreement, no Party shall be the agent of, or have any rights to create 

any obligations or liabilities binding on, the other Party.  The Parties do not intend to confer any 

benefit under this Agreement on any person or entity other than the named Parties hereto. 

 

Section 6.11. Binding Effect.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the 

covenants, conditions and agreements contained in this Agreement shall bind and inure to the 

benefit of the Developer, the City, and the District and their respective successors and permitted 

assigns. 

 

Section 6.12. Execution; Counterparts.  Each person executing this Agreement in a 

representative capacity warrants and represents that they have authority to do so, and upon request 

by another Party, proof of such authority will be furnished to the requesting Party.  This Agreement 

may be executed at different times and in two or more counterparts, and all counterparts so 

executed shall for all purposes constitute one and the same instrument, binding on the Parties 

hereto, notwithstanding that both Parties may not have executed the same counterpart.  In proving 

this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart 

executed by the Party against whom enforcement is sought. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and 

year first written above. 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY 

(the “City”) 

 

 

 

By:         

        Jerry Jeffrey, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

D. K. Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk 

 

DOWNTOWN MOBERLY COMMUNITY 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

(the “District”) 

 

 

 

By:         

        Chair 

ATTEST: 

 

38

 WS #2.



 

23 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

 

__________________________________ 

Secretary 

 

MASHBURN DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a 

Missouri limited liability company  

(the “Developer”) 

 

 

 

By: __________________________________     

 Its: _____________________________ 

     

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Printed name: _______________________ 

 

 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 

     ) SS. 

COUNTY OF RANDOLPH  ) 

 

On this ____ day of _______________, 2019, before me appeared Jerry Jeffrey, to me personally 

known, who being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Mayor of the CITY OF MOBERLY, a 

city of the third classification and Missouri municipal corporation and that the seal affixed to the 

foregoing instrument is the official seal of said City, and that said instrument was signed and sealed 

in behalf of said City by authority of its City Council and said Mayor acknowledged said 

instrument to be the free act and deed of said City. 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the 

County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 

 

 _______________________________ 

`     Notary Public 

My commission expires: 

 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 

     ) SS. 

COUNTY OF RANDOLPH  ) 

39

 WS #2.



 

24 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

 

On this ____ day of _______________, 2019, before me appeared Brian Crane, to me personally 

known, who being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Chair of the Board of Directors of the 

DOWNTOWN MOBERLY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a community 

improvement district and Missouri political subdivision and that the seal affixed to the foregoing 

instrument is the official seal of said District, and that said instrument was signed and sealed in 

behalf of said City by authority of its Board of Directors and said Chair acknowledged said 

instrument to be the free act and deed of said District. 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the 

County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 

 

 _______________________________ 

`     Notary Public 

My commission expires: 

 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 

    ) SS. 

COUNTY OF ___________ ) 

 

On this ____ day of _______________, 2019, before me appeared David Mashburn, to me 

personally known, who being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the _____________ of 

MASHBURN DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Missouri limited liability company, and that said 

instrument was signed in behalf of said limited liability company by authority of its governing 

body and said person acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said limited 

liability company. 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal 

in the County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 

 

       ________________________________ 

          Notary Public 

My commission expires: 

40

 WS #2.



 

25 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

EXHIBIT A 

 

CERTIFICATE OF REIMBURSABLE IMPROVEMENT COSTS (form) 

 

PARKING GARAGE AND MUNICIPAL AUDITORIUM IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

CERTIFICATE OF REIMBURSABLE IMPROVEMENT COSTS NO. _____ 

 

TO: City of Moberly 

 101 West Reed Street – City Hall  

 Moberly, Missouri 65270 

 

 c: Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District 

 101 West Reed Street  

 Moberly, Missouri 65270 

 

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Certificate of Reimbursable Improvement Costs 

(this “Certificate”) shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in that certain Purchase and 

Development Agreement, dated as of _____________, 20___, (the “Development Agreement”) by 

and among the City of Moberly, Missouri, the Downtown Moberly Community Improvement 

District, and Mashburn Development, LLC.   

 

In connection with the Development Agreement, the undersigned hereby states, certifies, and 

represents and warrants to the City and the District that: 

 

1.  Each item listed on Annex 1 attached hereto is an “improvement” (as that term is used and 

defined in the NID Act) the costs of which was incurred by or on behalf of the Developer in 

connection with the installation of the Parking Garage and/or improvements to the City’s 

Municipal Auditorium set forth on Schedule 1 to the Development Agreement and was paid by or 

on behalf of the Developer in connection with the Developer’s obligations under the Development 

Agreement; and 

 

2. No item listed on Annex 1 has been previously paid or reimbursed to the Developer and 

no part thereof has been included in any other Certificate previously submitted to the City under 

the Development Agreement. 

 

3. All necessary permits and approvals required for the entire Project have been issued or 

obtained and are in full force and effect; and 

 

4.  All work for which payment or reimbursement is requested pursuant to this Certificate has 

been performed in a good and workmanlike manner and in accordance with the Development 

Agreement; and 

 

5. The Developer has made or caused to be made all required payments to contractors and 

sub-contractors in connection with the items listed on Annex 1 and lien waivers for each applicable 

item have been obtained and copies are attached hereto; there has not been filed with or served 

upon the Developer, any Affiliate, or any Construction Contractor any notice of any lien, right of 

41

 WS #2.



 

26 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

lien, or attachment upon or claim affecting the right of any person, firm, or corporation to receive 

payment of the amounts stated in this Certificate, except to the extent such lien is being contested 

in good faith and is listed as such in Annex 1; and 

 

6.  Neither the Developer nor any Affiliate is in default or breach of any term or condition of 

the Development Agreement. 

 

Submitted, verified and signed under pains and penalties of perjury this _____ day of 

______________, 20____. 

 

      MASHBURN DEVELOPMENT, LLC 

 

 

 

      By: __________________________________ 

      Printed Name: __________________________ 

      Title: _________________________________ 

 

 

Accepted and Approved this ____ day of _____________, 20____. 

 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

 

 

 

By: _________________________________ 

Printed Name: ________________________ 

Title: ________________________________ 

 

 

 
 

 

42

 WS #2.



 

27 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

Annex 1 to Certificate of Reimbursable Improvement Costs 

 

 

Item Description        Cost  

 

1.          $ 

 

2. 

 

3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       Total this Certificate: $ 

43

 WS #2.



 

28 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

EXHIBIT B 

 

COMMERCE BANK PROPERTY 

 

 

 

 

Commerce Bank 

Parcel, 208 West Reed 

Street  10-1.0-01.0-2.0-
004-048.000 (less West 
Parking Lot Area)  

44

 WS #2.



 

29 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

EXHIBIT C 

 

THE HOTEL/CONVENTION CENTER PROPERTIES 

 

 

 

 

Kelly Hotel 
and City’s 

Municipal 

Auditorium 
10-1.0-01.0-
2.0-004-
049.000 

Parking Lot 

(City owned) 

10-1.0-01.0-
2.0-004-
061.000 

Smith 

Building, 220 

West Reed St. 
10-1.0-01.0-
2.0-004-
062.000 

West Parking Lot 

Area (Lots 5 & 6 of 
Commerce Bank 
Property) 

45

 WS #2.



 

30 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

EXHIBIT D 

 

MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM SCHEMATIC DRAWINGS 

46

 WS #2.



 

31 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

EXHIBIT E 

 

NID PETITION (form) 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI   ) 

      )  SS. 

COUNTY OF RANDOLPH   ) 

 

PETITION FOR THE CREATION OF A 

NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

TO THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI: 

 

 The undersigned, representing the owners of record of at least two-thirds by area of all real 

property located within a proposed Neighborhood Improvement District (as that term is defined 

and used in section 67.453(6) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) as further described 

below, hereby file and submit this Petition for the creation of a Neighborhood Improvement 

District (this “Petition”) and request that the Council of the City of Moberly (the “City Council”) 

by resolution or ordinance determine the advisability of the Improvements (as hereinafter defined) 

and order that the Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District 

be established, all pursuant to the Neighborhood Improvement District Act, sections 67.453 

through 67.457 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (the “NID Act”), and as further 

set forth in this Petition.  Capitalized terms used and not defined in this Petition shall have the 

meanings respectively ascribed to them in that certain Purchase and Development Agreement, 

dated as of  _____________, 20___, by and among the City of Moberly, Missouri, the Downtown 

Moberly Community Improvement District, and Mashburn Development, LLC (the “Development 

Agreement”) which is hereby incorporated by reference in this Petition as if set forth in its entirety 

in this place. 

 

1. The project name for the proposed Improvements shall be the Parking Garage and 

Municipal Auditorium Improvements Project (the “Project”). 

 

2. The general nature of the proposed Improvements includes: (a) construction and 

installation of an elevated two-story open roof public parking garage; (b) relocation, installation 

and renovation of sanitary and storm sewerage in connection with the foregoing; (c) construction 

and reconstruction of sidewalks, pavement, curbs and gutters in conjunction with the foregoing; 

(d) improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium as set forth in the Development Agreement; 

and (e) such other streetscape and other public improvements and facilities as may be appurtenant 

to the redevelopment of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties as a high quality boutique 

destination hotel and convention venue in accordance with the Minimum Development Program 

and which satisfy the definition of the term “improvement” as set forth in section 67.453(5) of the 

NID Act, all generally located within and serving that portion of the Moberly downtown area 

bounded by West Reed Street on the north, North Clark Street on the east, West Rollins Street on 

the south and North Williams Street on the west and benefitting the properties within the proposed 

Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District (collectively, the 

“Improvements”), together with the costs of issuance, debt service reserves, and accrued interest 

47

 WS #2.



 

32 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

on associated temporary notes or neighborhood improvement district bonds (“NID Bonds”) issued 

with respect to any and all portions of the Project.  Maintenance of the Improvements and the 

Project will be provided by the City of Moberly using City forces or through private contracts. 

 

3. The total estimated cost of the proposed Improvements is $______________ plus costs of 

issuance, debt service reserves, and accrued interest on NID Bonds. 

 

4. The Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District 

boundaries are legally described on Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated by reference in this 

Petition.  The proposed Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement 

District lies entirely within the corporate limits of the City of Moberly, Missouri. 

 

5. The proposed method of assessment of real property within the proposed Merchants Hotel 

and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District is as follows: the total cost of the 

Improvements (together with the costs of issuance, debt service reserves, and accrued interest, if 

any, on NID Bonds issued to finance the Improvements) will be divided and assessed ratably per 

parcel (as set forth in the records of the Randolph County Assessor) deemed to be benefited 

thereby, based upon the acreage or fraction thereof, for a duration of not more than twenty (20) 

years; provided that the City of Moberly has agreed in the Development Agreement to pay all such 

assessments. 

 

6. NOTICE:  The names of the signers of this Petition may not be withdrawn later than Seven 

(7) days after this Petition is filed with the City Clerk of the City of Moberly, Missouri. 

 

7. NOTICE:  The total final total costs of the Improvements plus costs of issuance, debt 

service reserves, and accrued interest on NID Bonds assessed against property within the proposed 

Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District and the amount of 

such general obligation bonds or temporary notes issued therefor shall not exceed the estimated 

costs of such Improvements as stated in paragraph 3 of this Petition by more than twenty-five 

percent (25%). 

 

        Respectfully submitted, 

 

        PETITIONER: 

 

        CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

 

 

        By: __________________________ 

        Name:  Brian Crane 

        Title:  City Manager 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

D.K. Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk  

Exhibit A to NID Petition 

48

 WS #2.



 

33 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

 

Legal Description of Proposed  

Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District  

 

 

 

 

 

 

49

 WS #2.



 

34 
 

Development Agreement – Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.3) 

Schedule 1 

 

Improvements to City’s Municipal Auditorium 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

50

 WS #2.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: December 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: Appointment to the Downtown CID Board 

  

Summary: At this time Christy Colston has resigned from the board, due to her 

resignation we have one open board member position.  Kelsey Jeffries has 

submitted an application to be appointed to this board.    The board is looking 

to appoint someone to complete this term.  Communication is being sent to 

other individuals that might be interested in fulfilling this position or if City 

Council has names to submit please let staff know and an application will be 

forwarded to them. 

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Direct staff to bring to the January 6th, 2020 Council meeting for final 

approval  

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
    x  Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other        Passed Failed 

 
51

 WS #3.



52

 WS #3.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: 

Community 

Development 

Date: December 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: Discussion for proposed stormwater solution for the Harrison/Garfield project as well 

as the Fox Run area. 

  

Summary: Attached is an email from Tom explaining the funding and change order. 

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Bring forward to the January 6, 2020 regular City Council meeting for final 

approval. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
        Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
    x   Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

53

 WS #4.



54

 WS #4.



55

 WS #4.



56

 WS #4.



57

 WS #4.



58

 WS #4.



59

 WS #4.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: December 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: Discussion Regarding Retaining KIMHEC for Services Related to 

Pretreatment Program Assistance  

  

Summary: The Pretreatment Coordinator at the Wastewater Treatment Facility is retiring this month.  

The work associate with this position has increased substantially in the last year due to DNR 

and EPA reviews associated with the renewal of our wastewater permit.  The City will have to 

update our sewer user ordinance and enforcement response plan, as well as the permits and 

permitting process for industries that are required to have a pretreatment permit issued by the 

City of Moberly.  In order to assure that this work is completed according to regulatory 

requirements and in a timely manner, staff reached out to Kim Cole, who manages the 

pretreatment program for a number of communities including the City of Hannibal.  Her 

services will be utilized in assessing the semi-annual reports submitted by industries in 

January, development of the annual pretreatment report to DNR, as well as a review of 

pretreatment permits that have been issued, recent inspections, the industrial user 

questionnaire, and assistance with updating our ordinances.  Her staff includes a person with a 

juris doctorate who has worked with 6 communities and DNR to facilitate the update to the 

ordinances. Until the City is able to hire a person to fill this position, we do not have sufficient 

staff to cover these activities.  

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Direct staff to develop a resolution authorizing the contract at the next regular 

meeting. 

  

Fund Name: Wastewater Professional Services 

  

Account Number: 301.114.5415 

  

Available Budget $: 0 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence   _    Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes     X Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

60

 WS #5.



2019 KimHEC TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. DEFINITIONS
1.1. “Additional Services” - the services to be performed for or furnished to the Client by the Consultant in accordance with                    

any mutually agreed upon written Amendment to the Agreement. 

1.2. “Agreement” - the scope of services and responsibilities for each party of the Agreement; these terms and conditions                  
are hereby made a part of the Agreement and does not include previous or contemporaneous agreements,                
representations, promises, or conditions pertaining to the Consultant’s services for this project and are hereby               
superseded. The Agreement includes the terms and conditions herein, the Agreement, and any Amendments mutually               
signed. 

1.3. “Basic Services” - the services to be performed for or furnished to Client by Consultant in accordance with the                   
Agreement. 

1.4. “Client” - the entity with which the Consultant has entered into this Agreement and for which the Consultant’s services                   
are to be performed. 

1.5. “Consultant” - the person, firm or company performing the Basic Services. 

1.6. “Designated Representatives” are the specific individual designated by each Party who shall act as a with respect to                  
the Services to be performed or furnished by the Consultant and the responsibilities of the Client under these Basic                   
Services. Such individuals shall have authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and render decisions              
relative to the Basic Services or Additional Services on behalf of each respective party. 

1.7. “Industry” - any industry, commercial facility, or manufacturing facility identified in the Agreement which may be integral                 
to the Services being performed for the Client. The Industry is not a party of the Agreement; however information                   
provided by the Industry may be integral to the Services being provided. The Services being performed may require                  
site visits to the Industry, information and data from the Industry, as well as additional information. 

1.8. “Site” - the Client’s Wastewater Treatment Plant, an Industry location, a Commercial location or other location of                 
interest in performing the Services associated with the Agreement herein. 

2. COMPENSATION
2.1. Consultant shall prepare invoices in accordance with its standard invoicing practices and the terms of the Agreement.                 

2.2.

Consultant shall submit its invoices to the Client on a monthly basis. 

Invoices are due and payable within thirty (30) days of receipt unless otherwise stipulated in the Agreement. 

2.3. Payment will be credited first to any interest owed to Consultant and then to principal. 

2.4. If Client fails to make any payment due Consultant for Services within 30 days after receipt of Consultant’s invoice,                   
then: 

2.4.1. Amounts due Consultant will be increased at the rate of 1% per month (or the maximum rate of interest                   
permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day and 

2.4.2. Consultant may, after given seven days written notice to Client, suspend services as defined herein until                
Client has paid in full all amounts due for services and other related charges. Client waives any and all claims                    
against Consultant for any such suspension. 

2.5. If any amount of an invoice is disputed then the Client shall inform the Consultant in writing of the grounds for such                      
dispute within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the invoice and shall pay to the Consultant the value of the invoice less the                       
disputed amount in accordance with these payment terms. Once settlement of the dispute has been agreed, any sum                  
then outstanding shall also be payable in accordance with these payment terms. 

3. TIMETABLE

3.1. The Consultant shall complete its obligations within a reasonable time. Specific periods of time for rendering services                 
or specific dates by which services are to be completed are provided in the Agreement. 

3.2. If, through no fault of the Consultant, the periods of time or dates referenced in Section 3.1 are changed, or the orderly                      
and continuous progress of Consultant’s services is impaired, or Consultant’s services are delayed or suspended, then                
the time for completion of Consultant’s services, and the rates and amounts of Consultant’s compensation, shall be                 
adjusted equitably. 

3.3. If Client authorizes changes in scope, extent, or character of the Basic Services, then the time for completion of                   
Consultant’s Additional Services and the rates and amounts of Consultant’s compensation, shall be adjusted              
accordingly. 

61

 WS #5.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS, CONTINUED

3.4. The Client shall make decisions and carry out its other responsibilities herein in a timely manner so as not to delay the                      
Consultant’s performance of its Services. 

4. TERMINATION

4.1. Services may be terminated by the Client or Consultant by seven (7) days written notice in the event of substantial                    
failure to perform in accordance with the terms hereof by the other party through no fault of the terminating party. If so                      
terminated, Client shall pay Consultant all amounts due for all services properly rendered and expenses incurred to the                  
date of receipt of notice of termination, plus reasonable costs incurred by the Consultant as a result of terminating the                    
Services.  

4.2. Services may be terminated by the Client or Consultant for convenience by providing fifteen (15) days written notice. If                   
Client so terminates the Services, Consultant is entitled to all amounts due for all services properly performed plus                  
Consultant’s costs as a result of the termination for convenience. If Consultant terminates its Services for convenience,                 
it shall be paid for all Services performed as of the effective date of the termination. 

5. DELIVERY USAGE OF THE SERVICES OR MATERIALS
5.1. The majority of Services supplied by the Consultant is dispatched electronically by email and shall be deemed                 

delivered upon receipt of the email by the Client. 

5.2. Once delivered to the Client, it is the Client’s responsibility to ensure the documents are transferred to the appropriate                   
regulatory agency or other intended recipient. 

5.3. Documents submitted to State or Federal Agencies and approved shall not be altered by the Client following such                  
approval. 

5.4. Client shall not make, or permit to be made, any modifications to any documents, including drawings and                 
specifications, furnished by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, without the prior written authorization of Consultant.  

6. CONFIDENTIALITY
6.1. Both parties shall maintain strict confidence and shall not disclose to any third party any information or material relating                   

to the other or the other’s business which comes into that party’s possession and shall not use such information and                    
material without written permission by the other party. This provision shall not, however, apply to information or material                  
which is, or becomes, public knowledge by means other than by breach of this clause by a party to this Agreement. 

7. INDEMNIFICATION AND MUTUAL WAIVER
7.1. Indemnification by Consultant: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless                

Client, and Client’s officers, directors, members, partners, agents, consultants, and employees from reasonable claims,              
costs, losses, and damages arising out of or relating to the Project, provided that any such claim, cost, loss, or damage                     
is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property, including                   
the loss of use resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of Consultant or                     
Consultant’s officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, or Consultants. This indemnification provision            
is subject to and limited by Section 8.1 hereof.  

7.2. Indemnification by Client: Client shall indemnify and hold harmless Consultant and its officers, directors, members,               
partners, agents, employees, and Consultants as required by applicable Laws and Regulations. 

7.3. Percentage Share of Negligence: To the fullest extent permitted by law, a party’s total liability to the other party and                    
anyone claiming by, through, or under the other party for any cost, loss, or damages caused in part by the negligence                     
of the party and in part by the negligence of the other party or any other negligent entity or individual, shall not exceed                       
the percentage share that the party’s negligence bears to the total negligence of Client, Consultant, and all other                  
negligent entities and individuals.  

7.4. Mutual Waiver: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Client and Consultant waive against each other, and the other’s                   
employees, officers, directors, members, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all claims for or               
entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related                  
to the Services.  

Page  2 OF 3 
2019 KimHEC Terms and Conditions 

62

 WS #5.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS, CONTINUED

8. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
8.1. In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the project to both the Client and the Consultant, the risks have been                      

allocated such that the Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the liability of the Consultant to the                      
Client for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages of any nature whatsoever or claims expenses from any cause or                    
causes, including attorneys’ fees and costs and expert witness fees and costs, so that the total aggregate liability of the                    
Consultant to the Client shall not exceed the general and professional liability insurance coverage defined in 8.2. It is                   
intended that this limitation apply to any and all liability or cause of action unless prohibited by law.  

8.2. Consultant will maintain general liability with not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence with a $2,000,000 annual                
aggregate limit and professional liability insurance with not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence with a $1,000,000                
annual aggregate limit and will name the Client as an additional insured. 

9. DISPUTE RESOLUTION
9.1. The Client and Consultant agree that all disputes between them arising out of the Consultant’s Services provided or                  

related to the Services in the Agreement, shall be submitted to non-binding mediation (unless the parties mutually                 
agree otherwise), thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for dispute resolution between Client and                
Consultant. Any  such mediation shall take place in St. Louis, Missouri before a mediator of the parties choice. 

10. GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS
10.1. Standards of Care: The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed or furnished by                  

Consultant under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the subject profession                  
practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. Consultant makes no warranties,                 
express or implied under this agreement or otherwise in connection with Consultant’s services. 

10.2. Consultant shall correct deficiencies in technical accuracy without additional compensation, unless such corrective             
action is directly attributable to deficiencies in Client-furnished information. 

10.3. The Basic Services defined herein may be amended, in writing, by mutual agreement between the Consultant and                 
Client. The Amendment may amend the scope (Additional Services), schedule, or compensation for the Services               
associated with the Agreement.  

10.4. Consultant and Client shall comply with applicable Laws and Regulations 

10.4.1. Prior to the Effective Date, Client provided to Consultant in writing any and all policies and procedures of                  
Client applicable to Consultant’s performance of services under this Agreement. Consultant shall comply with              
such policies and procedures, subject to the standard of care set forth in Section 10.1, and to the extent                   
compliance is not inconsistent with professional practice requirements.  

10.4.2. This Agreement is based on applicable Laws and Regulations and Client-provided written policies and              
procedures as of the Effective Date. Changes after the Effective Date to these Laws and Regulations, or to                  
Client-provided written policies and procedures, may be the basis for modifications to Client’s responsibilities              
or to Consultant’s scope of services, times of performance, or compensation.  

10.4.3. Consultant shall not be required to sign any documents, no matter by whom requested, that would result in the                   
Consultant having to certify, guarantee, or warrant the existence of conditions whose existence the Consultant               
cannot ascertain. Client agrees not to make resolution of any dispute with the Consultant or payment of any                  
amount due to the Consultant in any way contingent upon the Consultant signing any such documents.  

10.4.4. Consultant shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Client or for the information provided to the                    
Client by the Industry or of any of its agents or employees or of any other persons (except Consultant’s own                    
agents, employees, and Consultants) or otherwise furnishing or providing information, other than those made              
by Consultant.  

10.4.5. While at the Site, Consultant’s employees and representatives shall comply with the specific applicable              
requirements of the Site’s and Client’s safety programs of which Consultant has been informed in writing. 

Page  3 OF 3 
2019 KimHEC Terms and Conditions 

63

 WS #5.



 

Page  1 OF 3 
2019 KimHEC Moberly Missouri Pretreatment Program Assistance 

 

Agreement for Professional Services 

 

This is an agreement effective as of   

 [Client to Enter Effective Date in Line Above] 

between The City of Moberly (herein after called “Client”) and KimHEC (herein after 

called “Consultant”). Client’s Project, of which Consultant’s services under this Agreement 

are part, is generally defined as follows:  Pretreatment Program Assistance. Consultant’s 

services under this Agreement are generally defined as providing assistance in 

implementing the City’s Pretreatment Program.  

Section A, Basic Services 

Specifically, the Consultant agrees to perform duties related to assisting in the 

implementation of the Client’s Pretreatment Program including: 

a. Develop a schedule and plan to correct the deficiencies documented in the 

December 2019 Pretreatment Inspection performed by MDNR. 

b. Assist in compliance determinations, enforcement actions, and annual 

pretreatment report based on the MDNR inspection report and a review of records 

for the 2019 reporting periods.  

c. Assist in Program Updates including an updated Sewer Use Ordinance and 

Enforcement Response Plan which incorporates the local limits (local limit 

calculations shall performed by others and peer-reviewed by the Consultant). 

Pretreatment Program Assistance may also include (with appropriate authorization) the 

following tasks including but not limited to: 

a. Perform and document annual inspections including follow-up required 

b. Review and update of pretreatment components as necessary (e.g., hexavalent 

chromium local limit, copper local limit, and ERP plan) 

c. Form Development (permits, inspection forms, fact sheet, application) 

d. Legal Authority Updates and/or ERP Revisions 

e. Perform Inspections - including preparation, inspection, and summary 

f. Permit Issuance - including application review, fact sheet, permit, self-monitoring 

report templates 

g. Monitoring Report Reviews 

h. Violation Assistance 

64

 WS #5.



 

Page  2 OF 3 
2019 KimHEC Moberly Missouri Pretreatment Program Assistance 

 

i. Sample Plan Development 

j. Data Evaluation and Tracking (industry, WWTP, and/or biosolids) 

k. Training for the Client’s staff and/or industries 

l. Assistance during regulatory inspections 

m. Dental Rule implementation 

Section B, Client’s Responsibilities:  

a. Provide copies of relevant historical reports, analytical results, and inspections related 

to the industries. 

b. Provide the labor and analytical fees associated with any and all analytical work 

(influent, effluent, industry, biosolids) associated with this Project. 

c. Client is responsible for printing, postage, and mailing of all hard copy 

communications (Industrial Waste Surveys, communications, reports, etc.) as 

applicable. 

d. Client shall assist the Consultant during all site visits and in getting the information 

necessary to appropriately implement the Pretreatment Program such as permit 

applications and industrial inspection reports. 

Section C, Schedule for Rendering Services:  

Upon this agreement becoming effective, Consultant is authorized to begin services as 

set forth in Section A, Basic Services, and shall continue to render services until the time 

for rendering services is complete, until the corresponding tasks are complete, or until 

the not-to-exceed amount has been billed or otherwise authorized for additional work. 

Section D, Payments to Consultant 

Client shall pay Consultant for services rendered under this Agreement as follows: 

a. A not-to-exceed amount of $30,000. 

b. Each invoice amount shall include a description of tasks performed and associated 

labor hours for the Consulting Services defined herein. 

c. The hourly rate for tasks performed will be billed at $150 per hour or at a reduced 

rate depending on the task. 

d. If Services beyond the allocated not-to-exceed amount set forth in this Section is 

required, the Client shall authorize any such work via e-mail or other written 

documentation. Consultant will be paid at an hourly rate of $150 per hour for any 

such Services related to the management of the City’s Pretreatment Program or 

permitting process or other associated tasks beyond the allocated budget herein. 

65

 WS #5.



 

Page  3 OF 3 
2019 KimHEC Moberly Missouri Pretreatment Program Assistance 

 

Section E, Total Agreement 

This Agreement with the Terms and Conditions attached and Addendum noted above 

constitutes the entire Agreement between Client and Consultant and supersedes all prior 

written or oral understandings. This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, 

modified, or cancelled by a duly executed written instrument. 

In Witness Whereof, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of 

which is indicated on page 1. 

Client Acceptance:  Consultant Agreement: 

   

Signature  Signature 

  Kim Cole, P.E., Principal 

Printed Name, Title  Printed Name, Title 

  5326 Southwest Avenue 

Address  Address 

  St. Louis, Missouri 63139 

City, State, Zip  City, State, Zip 

  December 10, 2019 

Date of Acceptance  Date of Agreement 

Address for Giving Notices:  Address for Giving Notices: 

  Kim Cole, P.E. 

KimHEC 

123 Oak Tree Drive 

St. Louis, MO 63119 

Designated Representative: 
Name:   

Title:  

Phone:  

Email: 

 

 

 

 

Designated Representative: 
Name:  Kim Cole, P.E.  

Title: Principal  

Phone: 314-276-9575 

Email: kim.cole@kimhec.com 

 

66

 WS #5.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: December 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: Review of an agreement with Howe Company LLC for professional services 

at Moberly Industrial Park Subdivision. 

  

Summary: This agreement will provide plating for the Moberly Industrial Park 

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Direct staff to bring to the January 6th, 2020 Council meeting for final 

approval  

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
    x  Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report     x  Other        Passed Failed 

 

67

 WS #6.



68

 WS #6.



69

 WS #6.



70

 WS #6.



71

 WS #6.



72

 WS #6.



73

 WS #6.



74

 WS #6.



75

 WS #6.



76

 WS #6.



77

 WS #6.


	Top
	1. Review of J& M Display Agreement for the 4th July event in 2020
	Fireworks
	City of Moberly FDA
	Moberly 2020 P

	2. Ordinance approving development with Mashburn Development LLC
	Mashburn development
	ORDINANCE APPROVING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (v.1)
	Development Agreement (response to developer comments) DRAFT 11.21.2019

	3. Appointment to the Downtown CID Board
	downtown cid board
	CID Board Application

	4. Discussion of stormwater for Harrison/Garfield and Fox Run area
	Stormwater Harrison-Garfield
	Tom&#39;s Email
	Willis Change Order

	5. Discussion Regarding Retaining KIMHEC for Services Related to Pretreatment Program Assistance
	Summary Sheet, Work Session, 12-16-2019, KimHEC contract[4639]
	2019StandardTermsandConditions
	20191210MoberlyPretreatmentProgramAssistance Agreement

	6. Review of an agreement with Howe Company for Professional Service at Moberly Industrial Park
	howe agreement professional
	howe  industrial park

	Bottom

